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Dear Shareholder

We entered fiscal year 2011 with cautious optimism we were hopeflil that the worst of the

financial crisis was behind us but there was no expectation that the consumer would rebo.und given the

high unemployment rate in the United States and emerging concerns over economic stability within parts

of the European Union In addition to our ongoing focus on innovation and new product development

we continued to work on our key goals of stabilizing PartyLite North America growing PartyLite Europe

improving gross margins within the Catalog Internet Group and nurturing promising young network

marketing company ViSaius Sciences As always cash flow generation remained priority We ended

the fiscal year with over $200 million of cash on our balance sheet after repurchasing 582000 shares of

our common stock for total cost of $20.6 million as well as paying $8.9 million in special cash

dividend and $1.8 million in regular semi-annual dividends during the fiscal year Our financial position

remains strong and we have no net debt

Financial Performance Fiscal Year 2011

The sales environment in the United States remained challenging as expected Consolidated net

sales declined 6% from fiscal year 2010 to $901 million in fiscal year 2011 Consolidated net income for

fiscal year 2011 was $25.6 million and included asset impairment charges of $1.3 million We reported

earnings per share of $3.00 or excluding thc aforementioned charges $3.15 on normalized basis an

11% increase versus fiscal year 2010 nonnalized earnings

In the Direct Selling segment fiscal year 2011 sales of $579 million were 9% below the prior

year negatively impacting profitability While sales in Europe declined 2% in local currency due to poor

winter weather that impacted the seasonally important fourth quarter Europe remains PartyLite largest

and most important market For PartyLite U.S sales declined 25% primarily due to lower number of

active independent sales Consultants Management is completely focused on new fiscal
year

2012

programs intended to recruit independent sales Consultants to PartyLite partner with them to build their

busineses and support those who also want to become leaders We have also made significant

investments in online capabilities to support PartyLite Consultants and increase their sales per party

Moreover the average spend per guest increased in fiscal
year

2011 versus fiscal year 2010

demonstrating the strength of PartyLites product line and value-oriented pricing strategy

Also in the direct selling segment ViSalus Sciences capitalized on its winning Body By Vi 90 day

challenge business model and had significant sales and profit growth versus fiscal year 2010 Blyth made

its initial investment in ViSalus in calendar 2008 and is acquiring the weight management nutritional

supplements and energy drink company over the next several years



In the Catalog Internet segment fiscal year 2011 sales decreased 4% to $160.0 million Sales

for the Miles Kimball Company declined 2% as catalog circulation was tightly managed given our

expectations for conservative consumer spending This business experienced significant increase in

earnings returning to profitability on the strength of managements gross margin improvement programs

Wholesale segment sales increased 3% to $162.2 million as sales growth in the seasonal and

home decor business more than offset lower sales for the Steno Group The wholesale segment also

experienced improved earnings results in fiscal year 2011 versus fiscal year 2010 due to the impact of

higher sales and cost savings resulting from the consolidation of Midwest-CBK This improvement was

partially offset by the impact of higher commodity costs on the Sterno business

Corporate Goals

Each year we evaluate ourselves against three long-term corporate financial goals

Annual sales and earnings growth

7% to 9% operating margins

5% return on average equity

We achieved higher normalized earnings in fiscal year 2011 versus fiscal year 2010 primarily due to

restructuring and gross margin improvement programs Though we are disappointed not to have achieved

our other corporate goals we had anticipated challenging year for sales and recognize that growth and

improved return on equity require stabilization of PartyLite North America continued growth in Europe
and maintaining positive momentum at ViSalus These are our key areas of focus

Recent Developments

To build on Blyths direct-to-consumer strategic focus in April we announced definitive

agreement to sell Midwest-CBK our wholesale seasonal home decor and candle business and we

increased our investment in ViSalus Sciences to 57.5% We also exited our Boca Java online coffee

business in February as online marketing costs and retail competition made it very difficult to achieve the

scale required for profitability

As Blyth continues to evolve our senior management team and Board of Dii ectors remain

committed to the values upon which built this company offer superior products and customer service

operate under uncompromised ethical principles and support the entrepreneurial spirit that drives

innovation and leadership development throughout Blyth Together we work to ensure that these values

remain an integral part of our organizations culture

April 12 2011
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

Washington D.C 20549

FORM 10-K

Mark One

IXI ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the fiscal year ended January 31 2011

or

TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15d OF THE
SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934
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_______________
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Commission File number 1-13026

BLYTH INC
Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Its Charter

Delaware 36-2984916

State or Other Jurisdiction of I.R.S Employer

Incorporation or Organization Identification No

One East Weaver Street

Greenwich Connecticut 06831

Address of Principal Executive Offices Zip Code

Registrants telephone number including area code 203 661-1926

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12b of the Act

Name of each exchange

Title of each class on which renistered

Common Stock par value $0.02 per share New York Stock Exchange

Securities registered pursuant to Section 12grof the Act None

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is well-known seasoned issuer as defined in Rule 405 of

the Securities Act Yes No NI

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is not required to file reports pursuant to Section 13 or

Section 15d of the Act Yes No NI



Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has filed all reports required to be filed by Section

13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months or for such

shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports and has been subject to such

filing requirements for the past 90 days Yes No

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically and posted on its

corporate Web site if any every Interactive Data File required to be submitted and posted

pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months or for such shorter

period that the registrant was required to submit and post such files Yes No

Indicate by check mark if disclosure of delinquent filers pursuant to Item 405 of Regulation S-K is

not contained herein and will not be contained to the best of registrants knowledge in definitive

proxy or information statements incorporated by reference in Part III of this Form 10-K or any

amendment to this Form 10-K NI

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is large accelerated filer an accelerated filer non-

accelerated filer or smaller reporting company See the definitions of large accelerated filer

accelerated filer and smaller reporting company in Rule 2b-2 of the Exchange Act Check

one

Large accelerated filer Accelerated filer NI

Non-accelerated fileri Smaller reporting company

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is shell company as defined in Rule 2b-

of the Act Yes No NI

The aggregate market value of the voting common equity held by non-affiliates of the registrant

was approximately $202.9 million based on the closing price of the registrants Common Stock on

the New York Stock Exchange on July 31 2010 and based on the assumption for purposes of this

computation only that all of the registrants directors and executive officers are affiliates

As of March 31 2011 there were 8230502 outstanding shares of Common Stock

DOCUMENTS INCORPORATED BY REFERENCE

Portions of the 2011 Proxy Statement for the Annual Meeting of Shareholders to be held on June

2011 Incorporated into Part III
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PART

Item Business

General Development of Business

Blyth Inc together with its subsidiaries the Company which may be referred to as we us
or our is multi-channel company competing primarily in the home fragrance and decorative

accessories industry We design market and distribute an extensive array of decorative and

functional household products including candles accessories seasonal decorations household

convenience items and personalized gifts We also market weight management products

nutritional supplements and energy drinks In addition we manufacture and market chafing fuel

and other products for the foodservice trade Our distribution channels include direct sales

catalog Intemet and wholesale Sales and operations take place primarily in the United States

Canada and Europe with additional activity in Mexico Australia and the Far East

Additional Information

Additional information is available on our website www.blyth.com Our annual reports on Form

10-K quarterly reports on Form 10-Q current reports on Form 8-K and any amendments thereto

filed or furnished
pursuant to the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 are available on our website

free of charge as soon as reasonably practicable following submission to the SEC Also available

on our website are our corporate governance guidelines code of conduct and the charters for the

audit committee compensation committee and nominating and corporate governance committee

each of which is available in print to any shareholder who makes request to Blyth Inc One

East Weaver Street Greenwich CT 06831 Attention Secretary The information posted to

www.blyth.com however is not incorporated herein by reference and is not part of this report

Financial Information abont Segments

We report our financial results in three business segments the Direct Selling segment the

Catalog Internet segment and the Wholesale segment These segments accounted for

approximately 64% 18% and 18% of consolidated net sales respectively for fiscal 2011

Financial information relating to these business segments for fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 appears

in Note 20 to the Consoiidated Financiai Statements and is incorporated herein by reference

Narrative Description of Business

Direct Selling Segment

In fiscal 2011 the Direct Selling segment represented approximately 64% of total sales Our

principal Direct Selling business is PartyLite which sells premium candles and home fragrance

products and related decorative accessories PartyLite brand products are marketed in North

America Europe and Australia through network of independent sales consultants using the

party plan method of direct selling These products include fragranced and non-fragranced

candles bath products and abroad range of lated accessories

In October 2008 weacquired our interest in ViSalus distributor-based business that sells

weight management products nutritional supplements and energy drinks ViSalus represented

approximately 6% of total sales of the Direct Selling segment during fiscal 2011



United States Market

Within the United States market PartyLite brand products are sold directly to consumers

through network of independent sales consultants These consultants are compensated on the

basis of PartyLite product sales at parties organized by them and parties organized by consultants

recruited by them Over 18000 independent sales consultants located in the United States were

selling PartyLite products at January 31 2011 PartyLite products are designed packaged and

priced in accordance with their premium quality exclusivity and the distribution channel through

which they are sold

ViSalus Sciences ViSalus brand products are also sold directly to consumers using one-to-

one sales model through independent sales distributors who are compensated based on the

products they sell and products sold by distributors recruited by them Customers and distributors

generally set 90 day fitness goal known as the Body By Vi Challenge and purchase and

consume ViSalus products to help them achieve their goal Independent distributors sell ViSalus

brand products using one-to-one direct sales model

International Market

In fiscal 2011 PartyLite products were sold intemationally by more than 45000 independent sales

consultants located outside the United States These consultants were the exclusive distributors of

PartyLite brand products internationally PartyLites international markets at the end of fiscal 2011

were Australia Austria Canada Czech Republic Denmark Finland France Germany Italy

Mexico Norway Poland Switzerland Slovakia and the United Kingdom

We support our independent sales consultants with inventory management and control and

satisfy delivery requirements through an Internet-based order entry system which is available to

all independent sales consultants in the United States Canada and Europe

Business Acquisition

During fiscal 2009 we signed definitive agreement to purchase ViSalus direct seller of

weight management products nutritional supplements and energy drinks through series of

investments On October 21 2008 we compieted the initial investment and acquired 43.6%

equity interest in ViSalus for $13.0 million in cash In addition we my be required to make

additional purchases of ViSalus equity interest to increase our equity ownership over time to

57.5% 72.7% and 100.0% These additional purchases are currently conditioned upon ViSalus

meeting certain operating targets in calendar years 2010 2011 and 2012 ViSalus did not meet its

predefined operating target for calendar year 2010 However we have the right to waive this

requirement and increase our ownership interest to 57.5% If we elect to increase our ownership

interest to 57.5% in ViSalus in 2011 we will be required to make the additional purchases of

ViSalus in 2012 and 2013 if ViSalus meets it predefined operating targets in those years

Catalog Internet Segment

In fiscal 2011 this segment represented apprbximately 18% of total sales We design market and

distribute wide range of household convenience items personalized gifts and photo storage

products within this segment These products are sold through the Catalog and Internet

distribution channel under brand names that include As We Change Easy Comforts

Exposures Home Marketplace Miles Kimball and Walter Drake

In February 2011 we assigned the assets and liabilities of Boca Java for the benefit of its

creditors and exited this business The proceeds from the sale of the assets will be used to



discharge the claims of the creditors In January 2011 the Company recorded $1.1 million

impairment charge The impairment charge recorded was for the write-off of fixed assets

inventories on hand and other assets net of expected recoveries

Wholesale Segment

In fiscal 2011 this segment represented approximately 18% of total sales Products within this

segment include candles and related accessories seasonal decorations and home decor products

such as lamps picture frames and decorative metal accessories In addition chafing fuel and

tabletop lighting products and accessories for the away from home or foodservice trade are sold

in this segment Our wholesale products are designed packaged and priced to satisfy the varying

demands of retailers and consumers within each distribution channel

Products sold in the Wholesale segment in the United States are marketed through the premium

consumer wholesale channels and sold to independent gift shops specialty chains department

stores food and drug outlets mass retailers hotels restaurants and independent foodservice

distributors through independent sales representatives our key account managers and our sales

managers Our sales force supports our customers with product catalogs and samples

merchandising programs and selective fixtures Our sales force also receives training on the

marketing and proper use of our products

Product Brand Names

The key brand names under which our Direct Selling segment products are sold are

PartyLite Two Sisters Gourmetby PartyLite

Well Being by PartyLite ViSalus Sciences

The key brand names under which our Catalog Internet segment products are sold are

As We Change Home Marketplace

Easy Comforts Miles Kimball

Exposures Walter Drake

Thc key brand names under which our Wholesale segment products are sold are

Ambria Colonial at HOME
CBK HandyFuel

Colonial Candle Seasons of Cannon Falls

Colonial Candle of Cape Cod Sterno

New Product Development

Concepts for new products and product line extensions are directed to the marketing departments

of our business units from within all areas of the Company as well as from our independent sales

representatives and worldwide product manufacturing partners The new product development

process may include teclmical research consumer market research fragrance studies

comparative analyses the formulation of engineering specifications feasibility studies safety

assessments testing and evaluation



Manufacturing Sourcing and Distribution

In all of our business segments management continuously works to increase value and lower

costs through increased efficiency in worldwide production sourcing and distribution practices

the application of new technologies and process control systems and consolidation and

rationalization of equipment and facilities Net capital expenditures over the past five
years

have

totaled $48.9 million and are targeted to technological advancements and significant maintenance

and replacement projects at our manufacturing and distribution facilities We have also closed

several facilities and written down the values of certain machinery and equipment in recent years

in response to changing market conditions

We manufacture most of our candles using highly automated processes and technologies as well

as certain hand crafting and finishing and source nearly all of our other products primarily from

independent manufacturers in the Pacific Rim Europe and Mexico Many of our products are

manufactured by others based on our design specifications making our global supply chain

approach critically important to new product development quality control and cost management
We have also built network of stand-alone highly automated distribution facilities jn our core

markets

Customers

Customers in the Direct Selling segment are individual consumers served by independent sales

consultants Sales within the Catalog Intemet segment are also made directly to consumers

Wholesale segment customers primarily include independent gift and department stores specialty

chains foodservice distributors hotels and restaurants No single customer accounts for 10% or

more of Net Sales One customer within the Wholesale segment accounted for $1.9 million or

approximately 10% of the Accounts Receivables balance as of January 31 2011

Competition

All of our business segments are highly competitive both in terms of pricing and new product

introductions The worldwide market for home expressions products is highly fragmented with

numerous suppliers serving one or more of the distribution channels sewed by us In addition we

compete for direct selling consultants with other direct selling companies Because there are

relatively low barriers to entry
in all of our business segments we may face increased

competition from other companies some of which may have substantially greater financial or

other resources than those available to us Competition includes companies selling candles

manufactured at lower costs outside of the United States Moreover certain competitors focus on

single geographic or product market and attempt to gain or maintain market share solely on the

basis of price

Employees

As of January 31 2011 we had approximately 2$Q0 full-time employees of whom

approximately 30% were based outside of th United States Approximately 60% of our

employees are non-salaried We do not have any unionized employees in North America We
believe that relations with our employees are good Since our formation in 1977 we have never

experienced work stoppage



Raw Materials

All of the raw materials used for our candles home fragrance products and chafing fuel

principally petroleum-based wax fragrance glass containers and corrugate have historically

been available in adequate supply from multiple sources In fiscal 2011 costs continued to

increase for certain raw materials such as paraffin and other wax products diethylene glycol

DEG ethanol and paper which impacted profitability in all three segments

Seasonality

Our business is seasonal with our net sales strongest in the third and fourth fiscal quarters due to

increased shipments to meet year-end holiday season demand for our products For additional

information see Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations Seasonality

Trademarks and Patents

We own and have pending several trademark and patent registrations and applications in the

United States Patent and Trademark Office related to our products We also register certain

trademarks and patents in other countries While we regard these trademarks and patents as

valuable assets to our business we are not dependent on any single trademark or patent or group

thereof

Environmental Law Compliance

Most of the manufacturing distribution and research operations are affected by federal state

local and intemational environmental laws relating to the discharge of materials or otherwise to

the protection of the environment We have made and intend to continue to make expenditures

necessary to comply with applicable environmental laws and do not believe that such

expenditures will have material effect on our capital expenditures earnings or competitive

position

Financial Information about Geographic Areas

For information on net sales from extemal customers attributed to the United States and

intemational geographies and on long-lived assets located in and outside the United States see

Note 20 to the Consolidated Financial Statements



Item 1A Risk Factors

We may be unable to increase sales or identify suitable acquisition candidates

Our ability to increase sales depends on numerous factors including market acceptance of

existing products the successful introduction of new products growth of consumer discretionary

spending our ability to recruit new independent sales consultants sourcing of raw materials and

demand-driven increases in production and distribution capacity Business in all of our segments

is driven by consumer preferences Accordingly there can be no assurances that our current or

future products will maintain or achieve market acceptance Our sales and earnings results can be

negatively impacted by the worldwide economic environment particularly the United States

Canadian and European economies There can be no assurances that our financial results will not

be materially adversely affected by these factors in the future

Our historical growth has been due in part to acquisitions and we continue to consider additional

strategic acquisitions There can be no assurances that we will continue to identiQt suitable

acquisition candidates complete acquisitions on terms favorable to us finance acquiitions

successfully integrate acquired operations or that companies we acquire will perform as

anticipated

We may be unable to respond to changes in consumer preferences

Our ability to manage our inventories properly is an important factor in our operations The

nature of our products and the rapid changes in customer preferences leave us vulnerable to an

increased risk of inventory obsolescence Excess inventories can result in lower gross margins

due to the excessive discounts and markdowns that might be necessary to reduce inventory levels

Our ability to meet future product demand in all of our business segments will depend upon our

success in sourcing adequate supplies of our products bringing new production and distribution

capacity on line in timely manner improving our ability to forecast product demand and fulfill

customer orders promptly improving customer service-oriented management information

systems and training motivating and managing new employees The failure of any of the above

could result in material adverse effect on our financial results

downturn in the economy may affect consumer purchases of discretionary items such as

our products which could have material adverse effect on our business financial condition

and results of operations

Our results of operations may be materially affected by conditions in the global capital markets

and the economy generally both in the United States and elsewhere around the world Recently

concerns over inflation energy costs geopolitical issues the availability and cost of credit the

U.S mortgage market and declining real estate market in the United States have contributed to

increased volatility and diminished expectations for the economy continued or protracted

downturn in the economy could adversely impact consumer purchases of discretionary items

including demand for our products Factors that could affect consumers willingness to make such

discretionary purchases include general business conditions levels of employment energy costs

interest rates and tax rates the availability of consumer credit and consumer confidence

reduction in consumer spending could significantly reduce our sales and leave us with unsold

inventory The occurrence of these events could have material adverse effect on our business

financial condition and results of operations



The turmoil in the financial markets in recent years could increase our cost of borrowing
and impede access to or increase the cost of financing our operations and investments and

could result in additional impairments to our bnsinesses

United States and global credit and equity markets have undergone significant disruption in

recent years making it difficult for many businesses to obtain financing on acceptable terms In

addition in recent years equity markets have experienced rapid and wide fluctuations in value If

these conditions continue or worsen our cost of borrowing if needed may increase and it may be

more difficult to obtain financing for our businesses In addition our borrowing costs can be

affected by short and long term debt ratings assigned by independently rating agencies

decrease in these rating agencies would likely increase our cost of borrowing and/or make it more

difficult for us to obtain financing In the event current market conditions continue we will more

than likely be subject to higher interest costs than we are currently incurring and may require our

providing security to guarantee such borrowings Altematively we may not be able to obtain

unfunded borrowings in that amount which may require us to seek other forms of financing such

as term debt at higher interest rates and with additional expenses

In addition we may be subject to future impairments of our assets including accounts receivable

investments inventories property plant and equipment goodwill and other intangibles if the

valuation of these assets or businesses declines

We face diverse risks in our international business which could adversely affect our

operating results

We are dependent on intemational sales for substantial amount of our total revenue For fiscal

2009 2010 and 2011 revenue from outside the United States was 41% 45% and 45% of our total

revenue respectively We expect intemational sales to continue to represent substantial portion

of our revenue for the foreseeable future Due to our reliance on sales to customers outside the

United States we are subject to the risks of conducting business intemationally including

United States and foreign government trade restrictions including those which may

impose restrictions on imports to or from the United States

foreign government taxes and regulations including foreign taxes that we may not be able

to offset against taxes imposed upon us in the United States and foreign tax and other

laws limiting our ability to repatriate fhnds to the United States

the laws and policies of the United States Canada and certain European countries affecting the

importation of goods including duties quotas and taxes

foreign labor laws regulations and restrictions

difficulty in staffing and managing foreign operations and difficulty in maintaining quality

control

adverse fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates and interest rates including

risks related to any interest rate swap or other hedging activities we undertake

political instability natural disasters health crises war or events of terrorism

transportation costs and delays and

the strength of international economies
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We are dependent upon sales by independent consultants and distributors

significant portion of our products are marketed and sold through the direct selling method of

distribution where products are primarily marketed and sold by independent consultants or

distributors to consumers without the use of retail establishments This distribution system

depends upon the successful recruitment retention and motivation of large number of

independent consultants and distributors to offset frequent tumover The recruitment and

retention of independent consultants and distributors depends on the competitive environment

among direct selling companies and on the general labor market unemployment levels economic

conditions and demographic and cultural changes in the workforce The motivation of our

consultants and distributors depends in large part upon the effectiveness of our compensation

and promotional programs its competitiveness compared with other direct selling companies the

successflil introduction of new products and the ability to advance through the consultant ranks

Our sales are directly tied to the levels of activity of our consultants which is part-time working

activity for many of them Activity levels may be affected by the degree to which market is

penetrated by the presence of our consultants the amount of average sales
per party the amount

of sales
per consultant the mix of high-margin and low-margin products in our product line and

the activities and actions of our competitors

Eamings of independent sales consultants and distributors are subject to taxation and in some

instances legislation or governmental agencies impose obligations on us to collect or pay taxes

such as value added taxes and to maintain appropriate records In addition we may be subject to

the risk in some jurisdictions of new liabilities being imposed for social security and similar taxes

with respect to independent sales consultants and distributors In the event that local laws and

regulations or the interpretation of local laws and regulations change to require us to treat

independent sales consultants or distributors as employees or that independent sales consultants

and distributors are deemed by local regulatory authorities in one or more of the jurisdictions in

which we operate to be our employees rather than independent contractors or agents under

existing laws and interpretations we may be held responsible for social charges and related taxes

in those jurisdictions plus related assessments and penalties which could harm our financial

condition and operating results

Our profitability may be affected by shortages or increases in the cost of raw materials

Certain raw materials could be in short supply due to price changes capacity availability

change in production requirements weather or other factors including supply disruptions due to

production or transportation delays While the price of crude oil is only one of several factors

impacting the price of petroleum wax it is possible that recent fluctuations in oil prices may have

material adverse effect on the cost of petroleum-based products used in the manufacture or

transportation of our products particularly in the Direct Selling and Wholesale segments In

recent years substantial cost increases for certain raw materials such as paraffin diethylene

glcol DEG ethanol and paper negatively impacted profitability of certain products in all three

segments In addition number of governmental authorities in the U.S and abroad have

introduced or are contemplating enacting legal requirements including emissions limitations cap

and trade systems and other measures to redixce production of greenhouse gases in response to

the potential impacts of climate change These measures may have an indirect effect on us by

affecting the prices of products made from fossil fuels including paraffin and DEG as well as

ethanol which is used as an additive to gasoline Given the wide range of potential future climate

change regulations and their effects on these raw materials the potential indirect impact to our

operations is uncertain
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In addition the potential impact of climate change on the weather is highly uncertain The impact

of climate change may vary by geographic location and other circumstances including weather

pattems and any impact to natural resources such as water Severe weather in the locations where

fossil fuel based raw materials are produced such as increased hurricane activity in the Gulf of

Mexico could disrupt the production availability or pricing of these raw materials

We expect not to be disproportionately affected by these measures compared with other

companies engaged in the same businesses

We are dependent upon our key corporate management personnel

Our success depends in part on the contributions of our key corporate management including our

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer Robert Goergen as well as the members of the Office

of the Chairman Robert Barghaus Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Robert Goergen Jr Vice President and President Multi-Channel Group and Anne Butler

Vice President and President PartyLite Worldwide The loss of any of the key corporate

management personnel could have material adverse effect on our operating results

Our businesses are subject to the risks from increased competition

Our business is highly competitive both in terms of pricing and new product introductions The

worldwide market for decorative and functional products for the home is highly fragmented with

numerous suppliers serving one or more of the distribution channels served by us In addition we

compete for independent sales consultants and distributors with other direct selling companies

Because there are relatively low barriers to entry
in all of our business segments we may face

increased competition from other companies some of which may have substantially greater

financial or other resources than those available to us Competition includes companies selling

candles manufactured at lower costs outside of the United States Moreover certain competitors

focus on single geographic or product market and attempt to gain or maintain market share

solely on the basis of price

We depend upon our information technology systems

We are increasingly dependent on information tcchnology systems to operate our websites

process transactions manage inventory purchase sell and ship goods on timely basis and

maintain cost-efficient operations Previously we have experienced interruptions resulting from

upgrades to certain of our information technology systems which temporarily reduced the

effectiveness of our operations Our information technology systems depend on global

communications providers telephone systems hardware software and other aspects of Internet

infrastructure that have experienced significant system failures and outages in the past Our

systems are susceptible to outages due to fire floods power loss telecommunications failures

break-ins and similar events Despite the implementation of network security measures our

systems are vulnerable to computer viruses break-ins and similar disruptions from unauthorized

tampering with our systems The occurrence of these or other events could disrupt or damage our

information technology systems and inhibit intemai operations the ability to provide custoræer

service or the ability of customers or sales personnel to access our information systems

The Intemet plays major role in our interaction with customers and independent consultants and

distributors Risks such as changes in required technology interfaces website downtime and

other technical failures security breaches and consumer privacy are key concerns related to the
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Internet Our failure to successfully respond to these risks and uncertainties could reduce sales

increase costs and damage our relationships

Management uses information systems to support decision making and to monitor business

performance We may fail to generate accurate financial and operational reports essential for

making decisions at various levels of management Failure to adopt systematic procedures to

quality information technology general controls could disrupt our business and reduce sales In

addition if we do not maintain adequate controls such as reconciliations segregation of duties

and verification to prevent errors or incomplete information our ability to operate our business

could be limited

Changes in our effective tax rate may have an adverse effect on our reported earnings

Our effective tax rate and the amount of our provision for income taxes may be adversely affected

by number of factors including

the jurisdictions in which profits are determined to be earned and taxed

adjustments to estimated taxes upon finalization of various tax returns

changes in available tax credits

changes in the valuation of our deferred tax assets and liabilities

the resolution of issues arising from uncertain positions and tax audits with various tax

authorities

changes in accounting standards or tax laws and regulations or interpretations thereof and

penalties and/or interest expense that we may be required to recognize on liabilities associated

with uncertain tax positions

ViSalus business is affected by extensive laws governmental regulations and similar

constraints and their failure to comply with those constraints may have material adverse

effect on ViSalus financial condition and operating results

ViSalus is affected by extensive laws governmental regulations administrative determinations

court decisions and similar constraints Such laws regulations and other constraints exist at the

federal state or local levels in the United States including regulations pertaining to

the formulation manufacturing packaging abeing distribution importation sale and storage

of their products

product claims and advertising including direct claims and advertising by ViSalus as well as

claims and advertising by distributors for which they may be held responsible

their network marketing program and

taxation of their independent distributors which in some instances may impose an obligation

on ViSalus to collect the taxes and maintain appropriate records

There can be no assurance that ViSalus or its distributors are in compliance with all of these

regulations and the failure by ViSalus or its distributors failure to comply with these regulations

or new regulations could lead to the imposition of significant penalties or claims and could

negatively impact ViSalus business In addif ion the adoption of new regulations or changes in

the interpretations of existing regulations may result in significant
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compliance costs or discontinuation of product sales and may negatively impact the marketing of

ViSalus products resulting in significant loss of sales revenues

In addition ViSalus network marketing program is subject to number of federal and state

regulations administered by the FTC and various state agencies in the United States ViSalus is

subject to the risk that in one or more markets its network marketing program could be found

not to be in compliance with applicable law or regulations Regulations applicable to network

marketing organizations generally are directed at preventing fraudulent or deceptive schemes

often referred to as pyramid or chain sales schemes by ensuring that product sales ultimately

are made to consumers and that advancement within an organization is based on sales of the

organizations products rather than investments in the organization or other non-retail sales

related criteria The regulatory requirements conceming network marketing programs do not

include bright line rules and are inherently fact-based and thus even in jurisdictions where

ViSalus believes that its network marketing program is in frill compliance with applicable laws or

regulations governing network marketing systems it is subject to the risk that these laws or

regulations or the enforcement or interpretation of these laws and regulations by governmental

agencies or courts can change The failure of ViSalus network marketing program to comply

with current or newly adopted regulations could negatively impact its business in particular

market or in general

Increased cost of our catalog and promotional mailings can reduce our profitability

Postal rate increases and paper and printing costs affect the cost of our catalog and promotional

mailings Future additional increases in postal rates or in paper or printing costs would reduce our

profitability to the extent that we are unable to pass those increases directly to customers or offset

those increases by raising selling prices or by reducing the number and size of certain catalog

circulations

Climate change may pose physical risks that could harm our results of operations or affect

the way we conduct our business

Several of our facilities are located in areas exposed to the risk of hurricanes or tomadoes The

effect of global warming on such storms is highly uncertain Based on an assessment of the

locations of the facilities the nature and extent of the operations conducted at such facilities the

prior history of such stonns in these locations and the likely future effect of such storms on those

operations and on the Company as whole we do not currently expect any material adverse

effect on the results of operation from such storms in the foreseeable future

Failure to comply with Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 might have an impact

on market confidence in our reported financial information

We must continue to document test monitor and enhance our intemal control over financial

reporting in order to satisfy the requirements of Section 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

We will continue to perform the documentation and evaluations needed to comply with

Section 404 If during this process our managmentidentifies one or more material weaknees in

our intemal control over financial reporting ve will be unable to assert our intemal control as

effective
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Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

None

Item Properties

The following table sets forth the location and approximate square footage of our major

manufacturing and distribution facilities as of March 31 2011

Location Use Business Segment Approximate Square

Feet

Owned Leased

\mdell Park Australia Distribution irect Selling 38000

3atavia Illinois Manufacturing and

Research

Development

irect Selling and Wholesale 420000

arol Stream Illinois Distribution irect Selling 515000

umbria England Manufacturing and

related distribution

irect Selling 90000

lkin North Carolina Manufacturing and

related distribution

Wholesale 292300

-Ieidelberg Germany Distribution Direct Selling 6000

vlonterrey Mexico Distribution Direct Selling 45000

Oshkosh Wisconsin Distribution Catalog Internet 386000

Texas Manufacturing and

related distribution

Wholesale 154000 65000

Netherlands Distribution irect Selling 442500

Jnion City Tennessee Warehouse and

distribution

Wholesale 393000 31000

Our executive and administrative offices are generally located in leased space except for certain

offices located in owned space

Item Legal Proceedings

In August 2008 state department of revenue proposed to assess additional corporate income

taxes on us for fiscal years 2002 2003 and 2004 in the amount of $34.9 million including interest

and penalties The state department of revenue has subsequently reduced this amount to $16.9

million including interest and penalties In February 2011 the state department of revenue issued

notice of intent to assess additional corporate income taxes for fiscal years 2005 2006 and 2007

in the amount of $14.0 million including interest and penalties We intend to vigorously protest

afl of these assessments As of January 31 2011 we established reserve for this matter which

we believe is adequate based on existing facts and circumstances The ultimate resolution of these

matters could exceed our recorded reserve in the event of an unfavorable outcome however we

cannot estimate such loss at this time

We are involved in litigation arising in the ordinary course of business In our opinion existing

litigation will not have material adverse effect on our financial position results of operations or

cash flows
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Item Removed and Reserved
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PART II

Item Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer

Purchases of Equity Securities

Our Common Stock is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the symbol BTH The

following table provides the closing price range for the Common Stock on the New York Stock

Exchange

High Low

Fiscal 2010

First Quarter $44.49 $16.12

Second Quarter 45.98 29.90

Third Quarter 47.90 33.81

Fourth Quarter 38.75 28.09

Fiscal 2011

First Quarter $59.03 $26.79

Second Quarter 59.22 32.57

ThirdQuarter 46.11 36.39

Fourth Quarter 45.71 33.39

Many of our shares are held in street name by brokers and other institutions on behalf of

stockholders and we had approximately 2800 beneficial holders of Common Stock as of March

31 2011

During fiscal 2011 and 2010 the Board of Directors declared dividends as follows

Regular Dividend Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2011

Second Quarter $0.10 $0.10

Fourth Quarter $0.10 $0.10

Special Dividend

Fourth Quarter $1.00i $1.00

1Decared in January 201 and paid in first quarter of fiscal 2011

Our ability to pay cash dividends in the future depends upon among other things our ability to

operate profitably and to generate significant cash flows from operations in excess of investment

and financing requirements that may increase in the future to for example fund new acquisitions

or retire debt

The following table sets forth for the equity compensation plan categories listed below

information as of January 31 2011
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Equity Compensation Plan Information

Plan Category

Number of securities

to be issued upon

exercise of

outstanding options

warrants and rights1

Weighted-average

exercise price of

outstanding

options warrants

and rights

Number of securities

remaining available for

future issuance under

equity compensation

plans excluding

securities reflected in

column_a

Equity

approve

compensation plans

by security holders
47 600 109.16 821588

Equity

approve

compensation plans not

by security holders

Total 47600 109.16 821588

The information in this column excludes 137036 restricted stock units outstanding as of January 31 2011

The fol

Comm
lowing table sets forth certain information concerning the repurchases of the Companys

on Stock made by the Company during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Period

Total

Number of

Shares

Purchased

Average

Price Paid

per Share

Total Number of

Shares Purchased as

Part of Publicly

Announced Plans or

Programs

Maximum Number of

Shares that May Yet Be

Purchased Under the Plans

or Programs

Novemb

Novemb

er 12010
er 30 2010

1182 398

Decemb

Decemb

er 12010

er 31 2010
1182 398

January 12011

Janary312011
1182398

Total
1182398

On September 10 1998 our Board of Directos apprOved share repurchase program pursuant to which we were

originally authorized to repurchase up to 250000 shares of Common Stock in open market transactions From June

1999 to June 2006 the Board of Directors increased the authorization under this repurchase program five times on
June 1999 to increase the authorization by 250000 shares to 500000 shares on March 30 2000 to increase the

authorization by 250000 shares to 750000 shares on December 14 2000 to increase the authorization by 250000

shares to 1.0 million shares on April 2002 to increase the authorization by 500000 shares to 1.5 million shares and

on June 2006 to increase the authorization by 1.5 million shares to 3.0 million shares On December 13 2007 the

Board of Directors authorized new repurchase program for 1.5 million shares which became effective after we

exhausted the authorized amount under the old repurchase program As of January 31 2011 we have purchased total

18



of 3317602 shares of Common Stock under the old and new repurchase programs The repurchase programs do not

have expiration dates We intend to make fUrther purchases under the repurchase programs from time to time The

amounts set forth in this paragraph have been adjusted to give effect to the reverse stock split executed in fiscal 2009

This does not include the 16760 shares that we withheld in order to satisf employee withholding taxes upon the

distribution of vested restricted stock units

Performance Graph

The performance graph set forth below reflects the yearly change in the cumulative total

stockholder return price appreciation and reinvestment of dividends on our Common Stock

compared to the Standard and Poors SP 500 Index and the SP SmailCap 600 Index for

the five fiscal years ended January 31 2011 The graph assumes the investment of $100 in

Common Stock and the reinvestment of all dividends paid on such Common Stock into additional

shares of Common Stock and such indexes over the five-year period We believe that we are

unique and do not have comparable industry peers Since our competitors are typically not public

companies or are themselves subsidiaries or divisions of public companies engaged in multiple

lines of business we believe that it is not possible to compare our performance against that of our

competition In the absence of satisfactory peer group we believe that it is appropriate to

compare us to companies comprising SP SmallCap 600 Index the index we are currently

tracked in by SP

Blyth Inc Performance Graph

Comparison Of Total Stockholder Return

300

250

200

150

100 .a-I.. ...--

50

1/31/2006 1/31/2007 1/31/2008 1/31/2009 1/31/2010 1/31/2011

Blyth
100 98 105 17 37 46

-SP500 100 115 112 69 91 112

1SP600SmaIIcap 100 108 101 64 89 116
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Item Selected Financial Data

Set forth below are selected summary consolidated financial and operating data for fiscal
years

2007 through 2011 which have been derived from our audited financial statements for those years

The information
presented below should be read in conjunction with Managements Discussion

and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations and our consolidated financial

statements including the notes thereto appearing elsewhere in this Report The per share amounts

and number of shares outstanding have been adjusted to give effect to the -for-4 reverse stock split

of our common stock that we implemented on January 30 2009

in thousands excqst per shsie and percent data

Statement of Earnings Data

Net sales

Gross pmfit

Goodwill and other intangibles impairment

Operating profit

Interest expense

Earnings floss from continuing operations

beibre income taxes and noncontrolling inteitst

Earnings loss from continuing operations

attributable to Blyth Inc

Loss from discontinued operations

attributable to Blyth Inc

Net eamings loss attributable to Blyth Inc

Basic net earnings loss from continuing operations

attributable per Blyth Inc common share

Basic net loss fmm discontinued operations

attributable per Blyth Inc common share

2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

1.220611 1.164.950 1050393

596669 615471 577216

48812 49178 48751

958077

525499

16498

900927

499630

15644

19074

30887

15540

4028

10001

29983

7755

46607

7209

5369 21725 11525 22074 38406

2555 11072 15480 17694 25556

105728

103173 11072 15480 17694 25556

0.26 1.15 133 1.99 3.02

10.635
Basic net earnings loss attributable per Blyth Inc 10.37 1.15 1.73 1.99 3.02

Diluted net earnings loss from continuing operations

attributable per Blyth Inc common share 0.26 1.14 1.73 1.98 3.00

Diluted net loss from discontmued operations

attributable per Blyth Inc common share 10.56
Diluted net earnings loss attributable perBlyth mi 10.30 1.14 1.73 1.98 3.00

Cash dividends declaItd pershare 2.00 2.16 2.16 1.20 1.20

Basic weighted average number

ofommon shares outstanding 9945 9648 8971 8912 8462

Diluted weighted average number

ot common shares outstanding 10014 9132 8971 8934 8508

Operating Data

Gross pm fit margin 48.9% 52.8% 54.9% 54.8% 55.5%

Operating profit margin 1.3% 2.7% 0.4% 3.1% 5.2%

Netcapital expenditures 17714 9421 8173 5384 8218

Depreciation and amortization 34630 31974 18628 16592 13697

Balance Sheet Data

Total assets 774638 667422 574103 522993 501765

Total debt 215779 158815 145731 110544 110985

total stockholdess equity 363693 299068 248498 256274 249454

Statement of Earnings Data includes the results of operations for periods subsequent to the respective purchase acquisitions of As

We Change acquired in August 2008 and viSaus acquired in October 2008 none of which individually or in the aggregate had

material effect on the Companys results of operations

Fiscal 2007 and 2008 earnings include
restructuring charges recorded in the Wholesale and Direct Selling segments of $240 million

and $2.3 million respectively Fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 earnings include changes in estimated restructuring charges recorded in

the Direct Selling segment of$l .7 million $0.1 million and $0.8 million respectively See Note to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

In fiscal 2007 the Kaemingk Edelmsn Euro-Decor Gies and Colony businesses were sold The results of operations for these

business units have been reclassified to discontinued operations for all penods presented

Refer to Note 220 the Consolidated Financial Statements for the definitive agreement to sell all of the net assets of the Midwest

CBK business
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of

Operations

The financial and business analysis below provides information that we believe is relevant to an

assessment and understanding of our consolidated financial condition changes in financial

condition and results of operations This financial and business analysis should be read in

conjunction with our consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes to the

Consolidated Financial Statements set forth in Item Financial Statements and Supplementary

Data

Overview

Blyth is designer and marketer of home fragrance products and accessories home decor

seasonal decorations household convenience items and personalized gifts We also market

weight management products nutritional supplements and energy drinks as well as chafing fuel

and other products for the foodservice trade We compete in the global home expressions

industry and our products can be found throughout North America Europe and Australia Our

financial results are reported in three segments the Direct Selling segment the Catal.og Intemet

segment and the Wholesale segment These reportable segments are based on similarities in

distribution channels customers and management oversight

Fiscal 2011 Net sales are comprised of an approximately $579 million Direct Selling business an

approximately $160 million Catalog Intemet business and an approximately $162 million

Wholesale business Sales and eamings growth differ in each segment depending on geographic

location market penetration our relative market share and product and marketing execution

among other business factors

Our current focus is driving sales growth and profitability of our brands so we may leverage more

fully our infrastructure New product development continues to be critical to all three segments

of our business In the Direct Selling segment monthly sales and productivity incentives are

designed to attract retain and increase the earnings opportunity of independent sales consultants

and distributors In the Catalog Intemet channel product merchandising and circulation

strategy are designed to drive strong
sales growth in newer brands and expand the sales and

customer base of our flagship brands In the Wholesale segment sales initiatives are targeted to

independent retailers and national accounts

Recent Developments

In February 2011 we exited our gourmet coffee and tea business Boca Java and recorded $1.1

million charge in fiscal 2011 as ftirther detailed in Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial

Statements

On April 2011 we entered into definitive agreement to sell substantially all of thetet assets

of our seasonal home decor and home fragrance business Midwest-CBK within the

Wholesale segment for approximately $35 million which before transaction related costs is

approximately equal to its net book value upon closing We expect to receive cash proceeds of

approximately $23 million and one year promissory note secured by fixed assets included with

the transaction of approximately $12 million The sale is contingent upon the buyer obtaining

financing and is expected to close before the end of May 2011 The agreement provides for the

payment of termination fee if the buyer does not complete the transaction In fiscal 2011 total

net sales for Midwest-CBK were $105.1 million

These transactions will be presented as discontinued operations in the first quarter of fiscal 2012
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Business Acquisition

On August 2008 we signed an agreement to purchase ViSalus direct seller of weight

management products nutritional supplements and energy drinks tbrough series of

investments On October 21 2008 we completed the initial investment and acquired 43.6%

equity interest in ViSalus for $13.0 million in cash In addition we may be required to make

additional purchases of ViSalus equity interest to increase our equity ownership over time to

57.5% 72.7% and 100.0% These additional purchases are currently conditioned upon ViSalus

meeting certain operating targets in calendar years 2010 2011 and 2012 ViSalus did not meet its

predefined operating target for calendar year 2010 However we have the right to waive this

requirement and increase our ownership interest to 57.5% If we elect to increase our ownership

interest to 57.5% in ViSalus in 2011 we will be required to make the additional purchases of

ViSalus in 2012 and 2013 if ViSalus meets it predefined operating targets in those years

Segments

Within the Direct Selling segment the Company designs manufactures or sources markets and

distributes an extensive line of products including scented candles candle-related accessories and

other fragranced products under the PartyLite brand The Company also has an interest in

another direct selling business ViSalus which sells weight management products nutritional

supplements and energy drinks All products in this segment are sold in North America through

networks of independent sales consultants and distributors PartyLite brand products are also sold

in Europe and Australia

Within the Catalog Internet segment we design source and market broad range of household

convenience items premium photo albums frames holiday cards personalized gifts and kitchen

accessories These products are sold directly to the consumer under the As We Change Easy

Comforts Exposures Home Marketplace Miles Kimball and Walter Drake brands These

products are sold in North America

Within the Wholesale segment we design manufacture or source market and distribute an

extensive line of home fragrance products candle-related accessories seasonal decorations such

as omaments and trim and home decor products such as picture frames lamps and textiles

Products jr this segment are sold primarily in North America to retailer3 in the premium and

specialty markets under the CBK Colonial Candle of Cape Cod Colonial at HOME and

Seasons of Cannon Falls brands In addition chafing fuel and tabletop lighting products and

accessories for the away from home or foodservice trade are sold through this segment under

the Ambria HandyFuel and Stemo brands

The following table sets forth for the periods indicated the percentage relationship to Net Sales

and the percentage increase or decrease of certain items included in our Consolidated Statements

ofT Earnings Loss
Percentage Increase Decrease from

Prior Period

Percentage of Net Sales Fiscal 2010 Fiscal 2011

Years Ened January 31 Compared to Compared to

2009 2010 2011 Fiscal 2009 Fiscal 2010

Netsales 100.0 100.0 100.0 8.8 6.0

Cost of goods sold 45.1 45.2 44.5 8.7 7.2

Gross prafit 54.9 54.8 55.5 9.0 4.9

Selling 38.1 38.4 37.4 8.3 8.2

Administrative 11.8 11.6 12.9 9.9 3.9

Operating profit 0.4 3.1 5.2 N/M N/M

Earnings from continuing operatiora -1.5 1.8 2.8 N/M N/M
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N/M Percent change from the prior year is not meaningful in concluding on our performance

due to nonrecurring goodwill and other intangible impairments

Fiscal 2011 Compared to Fiscal 2010

Consolidated Net Sales

Net sales decreased $57.2 million or approximately 6.0% from $958.1 million in fiscal 2010 to

$900.9 million in fiscal 2011 The decrease is result of lower sales in PartyLites North

American business as well as The impact of weaker European currencies versus the U.S dollar

This decrease was partially offset by an increase in sales in our Wholesale segment International

sales represented 45% of total sales for fiscal 2010 and 2011

Net Sales Direct Selling Segment

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment decreased $56.4 million or 8.9% from $635.2 million in

fiscal 2010 to $578.8 million in fiscal 2011

PartyLites U.S sales decreased 25% from the prior year due to the impact of continued

weakness in consumer discretionary spending and decline in active independent sales

consultants as well as fewer shows per consultant resulting in less opportunity to promote our

products and recruit new consultants PartyLites active independent U.S sales consultant base

declined 17% on year-over-year
basis

In PartyLites European markets sales decreased 7% in U.S dollars On local currency basis

sales decreased approximately 2% principally due to lower sales in Germany the United

Kingdom and in the Nordic region partly offset by increased sales in France and Austria

PartyLite Europe sales decline is partly attributed to the weakened economy within the European

Union and poor weather condition at year end However PartyLites active independent

European sales consultant base increased 4% on year-over-year basis PartyLite Europe

represented approximately 54% of PartyLites worldwide net sales in fiscal 2010 compared to

58% in fiscal 2011

PartyLite Canada reported 9% decrease compared to the prior year in U.S dollars or 16%

decline on local currency basis driven primarily by the same factors as PartyLite U.S PartyLite

Canadas active independent sales consultant base declined 6% on year-over-year basis

Sales at Vi5alus increased $20.6 million or 157% from $13.1 million in fiscal 2010 to $33.7

million in fiscal 2011 This growth is result of 330% increase in distributors on year-over-

year basis

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment represented approximately 66% of total Blyth net sales in

fiscal 2010 compared to 64% in fiscal 2011

Net Sales Catalog Intemet Segment

Net sales in the Catalog Intemet segment decreased $6.1 million or 3.7% from $166.0 million

in fiscal 2010 to $159.9 million in fiscal 2011 This decline was due to select catalog circulation

reductions within Miles Kimball particularly in the Walter Drake Exposures and Home

Marketplace catalogs in an effort to reduce selling costs while reaching more targeted buyers In

addition Boca Java sales decreased $3.0 million or 34.5% from $8.7 million in fiscal 2010 to

$5.7 million in fiscal 2011 This decline was due to reduce consumer demand for Boca Java

products
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Net sales in the Catalog Internet segment accounted for approximately 18% of total Blyth net

sales in fiscal 2010 and fiscal 2011

Net Sales Wholesale Segment

Net sales in the Wholesale segment increased $5.4 million or 3.4% from $156.8 million in fiscal

2010 to $162.2 million in fiscal 2011 The increase in sales was due to 7% increase within our

Midwest-CBK business due to increased volume in the Seasonal product line This increase was

partially offset by decline in the food service business which continues to feel the impact of

weak demand due to higher customer discounts and incentives

Net sales in the Wholesale segment represented approximately 16% of total Blyth net sales in

fiscal 2010 compared to 18% in fiscal 2011

Consolidated Gross Profit and Operating Expenses

Blyths consolidated gross profit decreased $25.9 million or 4.9% from $525.5 milljon in fiscal

2010 to $499.6 million in fiscal 2011 The decrease in gross profit is primarily attributable to the

6% decrease in sales and higher commodity costs partly offset by lower operating expenses The

gross profit margin increased from 54.8% in fiscal 2010 to 55.5% in fiscal 2011 principally due to

the sharp increase in sales for ViSalus which carries higher gross margin than our other

businesses lower product costs and price increases at the Miles Kimball Company as well as

reduced distribution and restructuring costs at Midwest-CBK associated with the combination of

these two businesses partially offset by higher commodity costs across all business units

Blyths consolidated selling expense decreased $30.3 million or approximately 8.2% from

$367.5 million in fiscal 2010 to $337.2 million in fiscal 2011 The decrease in selling expense

which includes commission and promotional expenses is largely due to its variable nature with

sales which decreased 6% versus the prior year Selling expense as percentage of net sales

decreased from 38.4% in fiscal 2010 to 37.4% in fiscal 2011 This decline is primarily due to

efficiencies gained at Miles Kimball resulting from selected circulation reductions and

consolidation of the sales and marketing operations of the Midwest-CBK business

Blyth consolidated administrative expenses increased $4.3 million or 3.8% from $111.5 million

in fiscal 2010 to $115.8 million in fiscal 2011 The increase in expense is principally due to the

additional equity compensation expense of $1.7 million associated with ViSalus improved

operating performance and charges of $0.7 million due to the write down of assets for the Boca

Java business In addition in fiscal 2010 administrative expenses included $1.9 million non

recurring gain resulting from the settlement of the Miles Kimball Company pension plan

Administrative expenses as percentage of sales increased from 11.6% for fiscal 2010 to 12.8%

for fiscal 2011

In fiscal 2010 impairment charges of $16.5 million for goodwill and other intangibles were

recognized in the Direct Selling segment Vialus experienced substantial decline in revenues

and operating margins last year compared to its forecasts This shortfall in revenues and profit

was primarily attributable to decreased consumer spending due to changes in the business

environment and higher than anticipated attrition rate in its distributor base As result the

goodwill and intangibles in the Direct Selling segment were detennined to be impaired in fiscal

2010

Blyths consolidated operating profit increased $16.6 million from $30.0 million in fiscal 2010 to

$46.6 million in fiscal 2011 The increase is primarily due to the goodwill and other intangibles
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impairment recorded in fiscal 2010 of $16.5 million and cost savings in cost of good sold and

selling expenses as previously mentioned offset by the impact of 12% decrease in sales at

PartyLite Worldwide

Operating Profit Direct Selling Segment

Operating profit in the Direct Selling segment increased $5.9 million from $43.8 million in fiscal

2010 to $49.7 million in fiscal 2011 The increase is primarily due to the non-recurring $16.5

million goodwill and other intangible impairment related to ViSalus recorded in fiscal 2010 and

this years improved operating results within ViSalus partially offset by PartyLites lower

operating profit resulting from lower sales

Operating Loss Profit Catalog Intemet Segment

Operating profit in the Catalog Internet segment improved $4.5 million from an operating loss

of $4.8 million in fiscal 2010 to small operating loss of $0.3 million in fiscal 2011 This

improvement is primarily due to this years improved operating margin within the Miles Kimball

Company due to favorable gross margin lower product costs price advances and depreased

operating expenses as result of selected catalog circulation reductions This was partly offset by

charges of $1.1 million recorded at Boca Java for the impairment of assets and the recording of

non-recurring gain of $1.9 million on the settlement of the Miles Kimball Company pension plan

recorded in fiscal 2010

Operating Loss Wholesale Segment

Operating loss in the Wholesale segment decreased $6.2 million from $9.0 million in fiscal 2010

to $2.8 million in fiscal 2011 This improvement is primarily attributable to the 7% increase in

sales within Midwest-CBK as well as distribution and administrative cost savings recognized as

result of the Midwest-CBK combination This was partly offset by lower operating profit at

Stemo due to lower sales and sharply higher commodity costs

Other Expense Income

interest expense decreased $0.6 million from $7.8 million in fiscal 2010 to $7.2 millio in fiscal

2011 primarily due to the payment of the matured 7.90% Senior Notes in October 2009 partially

offset by higher interest expense at ViSalus

Interest income decreased $0.4 million from $1.4 million in fiscal 2010 to $1.0 million in fiscal

2011 principally due to lower interest rates earned on invested cash during fiscal 2011

Foreign exchange and other losses were $1.6 million in fiscal 2010 compared to $2.0 million in

fiscal 2011 The loss recorded in fiscal 2010 and 2011 includes an impairment of auction rate

securities of $0.9 million and $1.3 million respectively The loss recorded in fiscal 2011 of $1.3

million represents the difference between the auction rate security par
value of $10.0 million and

its liquidated value of $8.7 million Also included within Foreign exchange and other in fiscal

2011 is $0.6 million loss due to the impairment of an investment in LLC

Income tax expense increased $8.0 million from $5.6 million in fiscal 2010 to $13.6 million in

fiscal 2011 The increase in income tax expense was due primarily to reduction in pretax losses

in the United States and $9.1 million tax benefit recorded in the prior year for the favorable

closure of audits previously accrued partially offset by the tax impact of the non-deductible

portion of goodwill and other intangible impairments and impairments of investments for which
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partial tax benefit was recorded The effective tax rate was 25.6% in fiscal 2010 compared to

5.8% for the current year

The Net earnings attributable to Blyth Inc were $17.7 million in fiscal 2010 compared to

earnings of $25.5 million in fiscal 2011 The improvement is primarily attributable to the $16.5

million goodwill and intangibles impairment and improved operating results at Midwest-CBK

Miles Kimball and ViSalus partially offset by lower operating profits at PartyLite Stemo and

Boca Java

As result of the foregoing earnings from operations increased $7.8 million from eamings of

$17.7 million in fiscal 2010 to $25.5 million in fiscal 2011 Basic and diluted earnings per share

from operations were $1.99 and $1.98 per share for fiscal 2010 compared to income of $3.02 and

$3.00 per share for fiscal 2011

Fiscal 2010 Compared to Fiscal 2009

Consolidated Net Sales

Net sales decreased $92.7 million or approximately 9% from $1050.8 million in fiscal 2009 to

$958.1 million in fiscal 2010 The decrease is result of decline in sales in PartyLites North

American businesses and overall declines in sales in our Wholesale and Catalog Internet

segments This decrease was partially offset by an increase in sales within PartyLites European

markets

Net Sales Direct Selling Segment

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment decreased $29.3 million or 4% from $664.5 million in

fiscal 2009 to $635.2 million in fiscal 2010

PartyLites U.S sales decreased approximately 14% for fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 due

to the U.S economic recession which led to lower consumer discretionary spending decline in

PartyLite shows as well as decrease in shows per consultant all resulting in less opportunity to

promote our products and recruit new consultants We increased promotional activities to attract

and retain consultants hostesses and guests to attend shows As result PartyLites active

independent U.S sales consultants remained approximately even on year-over-year basis

PartyLite Canada reported 17% decrease for fiscal 2010 compared to fiscal 2009 in U.S dollars

or 15% on local
currency

basis The sales decrease in Canada is primarily due to the weak

Canadian economy which contributed to the decline in consultant base of 8% and decrease in

PartyLite shows year-over-year

InPartyLites European markets sales increased 3% in U.S dollars for fiscal 2010 compared to

fiscal 2009 driven by strong sales in Germany France and Austria On local currency basis

PartyLite Europe sales increased approximately 5% driven by an increase of approximately

2000 consultants PartyLite Europe represented approximately 50% of PartyLites worldwide net

sales in fiscal 2009 compared to 54% in fisoal 2010 reflecting the continued sales growth within

the European markets

Net sales in the Direct Selling segment represented approximately 63% of total Blyth net sales in

fiscal 2009 compared to 66% in fiscal 2010

26



Net Sales Catalog Intemet Segment

Net sales in the Catalog Intemet segment decreased $24.1 million or 13% from $190.1

million in fiscal 2009 to $166.0 million in fiscal 2010 Sales decreased across all catalogs due to

lower consumer discretionary spending as well as planned reduction in catalog circulation in an

effort to reduce selling costs through more targeted catalog delivery

Net sales in the Catalog Intemet segment accounted for approximately 18% of total Blyth net

sales in fiscal 2009 and fiscal 2010

Net Sales Wholesale Segment

Net sales in the Wholesale segment decreased $39.4 million or 20% from $196.2 million in

fiscal 2009 to $156.8 million in fiscal 2010 The decrease is primarily result of reduced sales

within our home decor seasonal decor and food service product lines which have been adversely

impacted by the weak housing market and overall economy Net sales in the Wholesale segment

represented approximately 19% of total Blyth net sales in fiscal 2009 compared to 16% in fiscal

2010

Consolidated Gross Profit and Operating Expenses

Blyths consolidated gross profit decreased $51.7 million or 9% from $577.2 million in fiscal

2009 to $525.5 million in fiscal 2010 The decrease in gross profit is primarily attributable to the

9% decrease in sales partially offset by rigorous cost controls These efforts included

consolidating some operations and workforce reductions specifically related to distribution

operations The gross profit margin decreased slightly from 54.9% in fiscal 2009 to 54.8% in

fiscal 2010 primarily due to the impact of sales declining at greater rate than promotional

expenses partially offset by cost reduction measures and general decrease in most commodity

costs specifically wax products and diethylene glycol DEG
Blyths consolidated selling expense decreased $33.2 million or approximately 8% from $400.7

million in fiscal 2009 to $367.5 million in fiscal 2010 The decrease in selling expense is

primarily the result of the reduced sales within the Wholesale segment PartyLite U.S and the

Catalog Internet segment Selling expense as percentage of net sales increased from 38.1% in

fiscal 2009 to 38.4% in fiscal 2010 which is primarily result of oromotional initiatives in the

Direct Selling segment to drive sales partially offset by the consolidation of the sales and

marketing operations of our seasonal and home decor Wholesale operations

Blyths consolidated administrative expenses decreased $12.3 million or 10% from $123.8

million in fiscal 2009 to $111.5 million in fiscal 2010 This decline is principally due to

improved expense management on year-over-year basis The consolidation of some of our

operations has allowed us to reduce administrative costs The merger of the Midwest and CBK

operations within the Wholesale segment resulted in an approximately 23% reduction in that

business units administrative expenses when compared to fiscal 2009 Also contributing to the

improvement is $1.9 million gain on pension plan settlement Administrative expenses as

percentage of sales declinecislightly from approximately 11.8% for fiscal 2009 to 11.6% for

fiscal 2010

Impairment charges of $48.8 million for goodwill and other intangibles were recognized in the

Catalog Internet segment in fiscal 2009 compared to $16.5 million impairment recorded in

the Direct Selling segment in fiscal 2010 In fiscal 2009 and 2010 we reviewed the performance

of the Miles Kimball and ViSalus businesses respectively and their projected outlooks Both

businesses experienced lower revenue growth and reduced operating margins than anticipated
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This shortfall in revenues and profit was primarily attributable to decreased consumer spending

due to changes in the business environment and an overall weak economy As result the

goodwill and intangibles in the Catalog Internet segment were determined to be impaired in

fiscal 2009 and in the Direct Selling segment during fiscal 2010

Blyths consolidated operating profit increased $26.0 million from $4.0 million in fiscal 2009 to

$30.0 million in fiscal 2010 The increase is primarily due to the decrease in goodwill and other

intangibles impairments partially offset by the impact of the 9% decrease in sales

Operating Profit Direct Selling Segment

Operating profit in the Direct Selling segment decreased $30.6 million from $74.4 million in

fiscal 2009 to $43.8 million in fiscal 2010 More than half of the decrease is attributable to the

$16.5 million goodwill and other intangible impairments related to ViSalus recorded in fiscal

2010 The remaining decline in operating income is attributable to decline in operating income

for PartyLites U.S operations primarily result of the 14% decrease in sales Partially offsetting

this decline is sales growth within PartyLite Europe

Operating Loss Catalog Intemet Segment

Operating loss in the Catalog Intemet segment decreased from $59.1 million in fiscal 2009 to

$4.8 million in fiscal 2010 The lower operating loss is primarily due to the nonrecurring

goodwill and other intangibles impairments charges of $48.8 million recorded during tiscal 2009

and $1.9 million gain as the result of the pension plan settlement realized during fiscal 2010

Excluding the effect of these items the operating loss would have been $10.3 million in fiscal

2009 as compared to $6.7 million in fiscal 2010 This improvement is principally due to the

nonrecurring impact of ERP implementation issues experienced in fiscal 2009 that increased

shipping and customer service costs and cost reductions at the Miles Kimball Company and Boca

Java

Operating Loss Wholesale Segment

Operating loss in the Wholesale segment decreased $2.2 million from $11.2 million in fiscal 2009

to $9.0 mfllion in fiscal 2010 This reduction is primarily the result of 28% improvement in

Selling and Administrative expenses across the segment primarily due to the merger of the

Midwest and CBK operations This was offset by 20% decrease in sales across the segment due

to soft housing market and continuing weak economy

Consolidated Other Expense Income

lnterest expense decreased $2.2 million from $10.0 million in fiscal 2009 to $7.8 million in fiscal

2Q10 primarily due to the payoff of the matured 7.90% Senior Notes during fiscal 2010

Interest income decreased $2.9 million from $4.3 million in fiscal 2009 to $1.4 million in fiscal

2010 due to sharply lower interest rates eamed on ihvested cash during fiscal 2010

Foreign exchange and other losses were $9.8 million in fiscal 2009 compared to $1.6 million in

fiscal 2010 The loss recorded in fiscal 2009 includes $5.2 million for the permanent impairment

of our investment in RedEnvelope and write-down of $2.1 million related to our preferred stock

portfolio that was previously classified as trading investment The loss in fiscal 2010 included

$0.9 million loss on the sale of an auction rate security investment
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Income tax expense increased $1.8 million from $3.8 million in fiscal 2009 to $5.6 million in

fiscal 2010 The increase in income tax expense was due primarily to reduction in pretax losses

in the United States and $9.1 million reduction in our unrecognized tax benefits partially offset

by the tax impact of the non-deductible portion of goodwill and other intangible impairments and

impairments of investments for which partial tax benefit was recorded The effective tax rate

was negative 33.3% in fiscal 2009 as result of our net loss compared to an expense of 25.6%

in fiscal 2010

The Net loss attributable to Blyth Inc was $15.5 million in fiscal 2009 compared to earnings of

$17.7 million in fiscal 2010 The improvement is primarily attributable to the $48.8 million

goodwill and intangibles impairments recorded during the third quarter of fiscal 2009 partially

offset by the $16.5 million goodwill and intangibles impairment recorded in the second quarter of

fiscal 2010 and lower sales in relation in fiscal 2009 compared to fiscal 2010

As result of the foregoing earnings from operations increased $33.2 million from loss of

$15.5 million in fiscal 2009 to earnings of $17.7 million in fiscal 2010 Basic and diluted

earnings loss per share from operations were $1.73 for fiscal 2009 compared to income of

$1.99 and $1.98 per share respectively for fiscal 2010

Seasonality

Historically our operating cash flow for the first nine months of the fiscal year shows little if any

positive cash flow due to requirements for meeting working capital needs for inventory purchases

and the extension of credit through the holiday season Our fourth quarter however historically

generates surplus of cash resulting from large concentration of our business occurring during

the holiday season Over one third of our total revenue was recorded in the fourth quarter
of fiscal

2011

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Cash and cash equivalents decreased $1.7 million from $207.4 million at January 31 2010 to

$205.7 million at January 31 2011

We typically generate positive cash flow from operations due to favorable
gross margins and the

variable nature of selling expenses which constitute significant percentage
of operating

expenses We generated $93.4 million in cash from operations in fiscal 2010 compared to $39.3

million in fiscal 2011 This decline was primarily driven by net changes in operating assets and

liabilities which resulted in the use of cash of $13.9 million in fiscal 2011 compared to source

of cash $35.9 million in the prior year This decrease was primarily driven by higher inventories

resulting from lower than expected sales and reduction in accounts payable as we endeavored to

take advantage of early discount programs included in earnings in fiscal 2011 were non-cash

charges for depreciation and amortization and amortization of unearned stock-based

compensation of$13.7 million and $2.1 million respectively

Due to the seasonal nature of our businesses we generally do not have significant positive cash

flow from operations until our fourth quarter Our working capital needs are the highest in late

summer prior to the start of the holiday season If demand for our products falls short of

expectations we could be required to maintain higher inventory balances than forecasted which

could negatively impact our liquidity

Net cash provided by investing activities was $6.1 million in fiscal 2010 compared to use of

$0.3 million in fiscal 2011 Proceeds from the sale of investments in fiscal 2011 generated $14.1

million of cash primarily through liquidation of equity securities and maturities of short-term
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certificates of deposit Uses of cash in fiscal 2011 included purchases of short-term investments

of $6.9 million and net capital expenditures for property plant and equipment of $8.2 million

Net cash used in financing activities in fiscal 2010 was $41.3 million compared to $39.3 million

in fiscal 2011 The current year included the reduction of our long-term debt and capital lease

obligations by $0.6 million compared to long-term debt and capital lease payments of $38.0

million in the prior year During fiscal 2011 we purchased treasury stock of $20.6 million and

paid dividends of$18.8 million compared to $4.0 million and $1.8 million in the prior year We
will continue to monitor carefully our cash position and will only make additional repurchases of

outstanding debt or treasury shares and pay dividends when we have sufficient cash surpluses

available to do so

significant portion of our operations are outside of the United States significant downturn in

our business in our international markets would adversely impact our ability to generate operating

cash flows Operating cash flows would also be negatively impacted if we experienced

difficulties in the recruitment retention and our ability to maintain the productivity of our

independent consultants Sales decreased in PartyLites U.S market from the prior year by $49.8

million or 25% which was driven by lower activity by existing consultants and lower number

of PartyLite shows held resulting from difficult economic conditions Managements key areas of

focus have included stabilizing the consultant base through training and promotional incentives

which has had several continuous years of decline in the United States \Vhile we are making

efforts to stabilize and increase the number of active independent sales consultants it may be

difficult to do so in the current economic climate due to reduced consumer discretionary

spending If our U.S consultant count continues to decline it will have negative impact on our

liquidity and financial results

We anticipate total capital spending of approximately $9.0 million for fiscal 2012 major

influence on the forecasted expenditures is our investment in the growth of the PartyLite

European operations as well as investments in information technology systems We have grown
in part through acquisitions and as part of our growth strategy we expect to continue from time

to time in the ordinary course of business to evaluate and pursue acquisition opportunities as

appropriate We believe our financing needs in the short and long term can be met from cash

generated internally Information on debt maturities is presented in Note 12 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements

On October 21 2008 we acquired 43.6% interest in ViSalus for $13.0 million and incurred

acquisition costs of $1.0 million for total cash acquisition cost of $14.0 million We may

purchase additional interests in ViSalus that will require additional capital resources increasing

our ownership to 100% These additional purchases are currently conditioned upon ViSalus

meeting certain operating targets in calendar years 2010 2011 and 2012 ViSalus did not meet its

predefined operating target for calendar year 2010 However we have the right to waive this

requirement and increase our ownership interest to 57.5% As such the amount representing the

allocation of losses equivalent to the noncontrolling interest in ViSalus has been reclassified to

Stockholders equity as noncontrolling interest as it is no longer probable of being redeemed If

we elect to increase our ownership interest to 57.5% in ViSalus in 2011 we will be requiredto

make the additional purchases of ViSalus itt 2012 and 2013 if ViSalus meets it predefined

operating targets in those years As of January 31 2011 if ViSalus meets its projected operating

targets the total expected redemption value of noncontrolling interest will be approximately

$37.6 million paid through 2014 The total expected redemption value could increase or decrease

depending upon whether ViSalus exceeds or falls short of its operating projections We expect the

payment if any will be out of existing cash balances and future cash flows from operations
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The current status of the United States and global credit and equity markets have made it diffiŁult

for many businesses to obtain financing on acceptable terms If these conditions continue or

worsen our cost of borrowing may increase and it may be more difficult to obtain financing for

our businesses Obtaining new credit facility will more than likely require higher interest costs

and may require our providing security to guarantee
such borrowings Alternatively we may not

be able to obtain unfunded borrowings which may require us to seek other forms of financing

such as term debt at higher interest rates and additional expense significant amount of our

cash and cash equivalents are held by our international subsidiaries in foreign banks and as such

may be subject to foreign taxes unfavorable exchange rate fluctuations and other factors limiting

our ability to repatriate funds to the United States

In addition if economic conditions decline we may be subject to future impairments of our

assets including accounts receivable inventories property plant and equipment investments

deferred tax assets goodwill and other intangibles if the valuation of these assets or businesses

decline

Cash held in foreign locations was approximately $58 million and $82 million as of January 31

2010 and 2011 respectively We had no short term borrowings outstanding as of Jan.uary 31
2010 and 2011 or at anytime during the past year

As of January 31 2011 we had $2.0 million available under an uncommitted facility issued by

bank to be used for letters of credit through January 31 2012 As of January 31 2011 no

amount was outstanding under this facility

As of January 31 2011 we had $2.1 million in standby letters of credit outstanding that are fully

collateralized through certificate of deposit funded by us

In May 1999 we filed shelf registration statement for issuance of up to $250.0 million in debt

securities with the Securities and Exchange Commission On September 24 1999 we issued

$150.0 million of 7.90% Senior Notes due October 2009 at discount of approximately $1.4

million which was amortized over the life of the notes During the first nine months of fiscal

2010 we repurchased $12.6 million of these notes prior to their maturity date The final principal

payment of $24.7 million was made upon maturity in October 2009

On October 20 2003 we issued $100.0 million 5.50% Senior Notes due on November 2013 at

discount of approximately $0.2 million which is being amortized over the life of the

notes Such notes contain among other provisions restrictions on liens on principal property or

stock issued to collateralize debt As of January 31 2011 we were in compliance with such

provisions Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on May and November The notes

may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at specified redemption price The proceeds of

the debt issuances were used for general corporate purposes

As of January 31 2010 and 2011 Miles Kimball had approximately $7.7 million and $7.2 million

respectively of long-term debt including current portion outstanding under real estate mortgage

note payable which matures on June 2020 Under the terms of the note payments of principal

and interest are required monthly at fixed interest rate of 7.89%

As of January 31 2010 and 2011 Midwest-CBK had $0.1 million of long-term debt outstanding

under an Industrial Revenue Bond IRB which matures on January 2025 The bond is

backed by an irrevocable letter of credit The loan is collateralized by certain of Midwest-CBK

assets The amount outstanding under the IRB bears interest at short-term floating rates which

on weighted average was 0.6 as of January 31 2011 Interest payments are required monthly

and the principal is due upon maturity
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As of January 31 2010 and 2011 ViSalus had two long-term loans totaling $2.7 million and $3.2

million outstanding related to notes payable to RAM and ViSalus three founders Under the

terms of the notes interest is accrued at fixed annual interest rate of 10.0% in addition to the

$0.6 million interest cost as result of ViSalus achieving certain performance criteria see Note

to the Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

On February 28 2011 ViSalus repaid $0.6 million of the loan due to founders and RAM and also

the lump-sum interest payment of $0.6 million due at maturity on the loan In March 2011

ViSalus paid the loan balance of $3.3 million including interest accrued due to Blyth

The estimated fair value of our $1 10.5 million and $111.0 million total long-term debt including

Capital leases at January 31 2010 and 2011 was approximately $95.6 million and $110.2

million respectively The fair value of the liability is determined using the fair value of its notes

when traded as an asset in an inactive market and is based on current interest rates relative credit

risk and time to maturity

The following table summarizes the maturity dates of our contractual obligations as of January

312011

Payments Due by Period

Contractual Obligations In thousands Total

Less than

year Years -5 Years

More than

Years

Long-TermDebt1

Capital
Leases121

Interest131

Purchase Obligattons14

110730 1239 103916 1421

255 90 135 30

18235 6112 10600 760

33284 32025 1259

4154

763

Operating Leases

Unrecognized Tax Beneftts1t1

47835

12211

15030 16951 7819 8035

Total Contractual Obligations 222550 54496 132861 10030 12952

Long-term debt includm 55% Senior Nosm due November 2013 mortgage nose pnyable-malarity Jane 12020 and an tndustrial Revenue Bond tRB
with maturity date of January 12025 see Nose t2 to theConsolidatnt Financial statements

Amounts repinsmt fature tease payments excluding ieterest due an five capital teases which end betwern fiscal 2011 and fiscal 2013Scc Note t4to the

Consolidated Financial statements

Interest expense on lang-serm debt is comprised of $15 million rdating to Senior Noses $30 million in mortgage issniest $16 thousand of interest due on

the MKC Wisconsin Loan $4 shounand of interest dan on the CBK Industrial Revenue Bond $27 thoasand relating to She Visalus founder loans and

approsi mataly $39 thousand of interest relating to future capital 1mw obligations

Purchase obligations cmisisi primarily ofopni pamhase ordern for inventory

There are no unrecognized tax benefits expected to be rmlized within the next 12 months and $12 million for which we are not able to

masonasly estimate thc timing of the potcetiat Ititure paymmts See Note to tIre Consolidated Financial Slatements

On December 13 2007 our Board of Directors authorized new stock repurchase program for

1500000 shares in addition to 3000000 shares authorized under the previous plan The new

stock repurchase program became effective after we exhausted the authorized amount under the

old repurchase program We repurchased approximately 582000 shares during fiscal 2011 As of

January 31 2011 the cumulative total shares purchased under the nev and old program was

3317602 at total cost of approximately $249.4 million The acquired shares are held as

common stock in treasury at cost

During fiscal 2011 we paid $18.8 million indcvidends compared to $1.8 million in fiscal 2010

The total dividends declared during fiscal 2011 were approximately $10.0 millionwhich includes

the $8.2 million special dividend declared in November 2010 and paid in December 2010 Our

ability to pay cash dividends in the future is dependent upon among other things our ability to

operate profitably and to generate significant cash flows from operations in excess of investment

and financing requirements that may increase in the future to for example fUnd new acquisitions or

retire debt As we normally do we will review our dividend policy prior to our next dividend
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payment historically we have paid dividends in May and November and may adjust the rate of

our semi-annual dividend if necessary

We do not maintain any off-balance sheet arrangements transactions obligations or other

relationships with unconsolidated entities that would be expected to have material current or

future effect upon our financial statements We utilize derivatives for operational purposes i.e

forward exchange forward contracts

Critical Accounting Policies

Our discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations are based upon

our consolidated financial statements which have been prepared in accordance with accounting

principles generally accepted in the United States The preparation of these financial statements

requires us to make estimates and judgments that affect the reported amounts of assets liabilities

revenues and expenses and related disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities On an ongoing

basis we evaluate our estimates including those related to bad debts sales adjustments

inventories income taxes restructuring and impairments contingencies and litigation We base

our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we beliçve to be

reasonable under the circumstances the results of which form the basis for making judgments

about the carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources

Actual results may differ from these estimates under different assumptions or conditions

Note Ito the Consolidated Financial Statements includes summary of the significant accounting

policies and methods used in the preparation of our consolidated financial statements The

following are our critical accounting policies and methods

Revenue Recognition

Revenues consist of sales to customers net of retums and allowances We recognize revenue

upon delivery when both title and risk of loss are transferred to the customer We present

reveilues net of any taxes collected from customers and remitted to govemment authorities

Generally our sales are based on fixed prices from published price lists We record estimated

reductions to revenue for customer programs -which may include special pricing agreements for

specific customers volume incentives and other promotions Should market conditions decline

we may increase customer incentives with respect to future sales We also record reductions to

revenue based primarily on historical experience for estimated customer retums and chargebacks

that may arise as result of shipping errors product damage in transit or for other reasons that

can only become known subsequent to recognizing the revenue If the amount of actual customer

returns and chargebacks were to increase significantly from the estimated amount revisions to the

estimated allowance would be required in some instances we receiye payment in advance of

product delivery Such advance payments occur primarily in our direct selling and direct

marketing channels and are recorded as deferred revenue in Accrued expenses in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets Upon delivery of product for which advance payment has been

made the related deferred revenue is reversed and recorded as revenue

We establish an allowance for doubtftil accounts for trade and note receivables The allowance is

determined based on our evaluation of specific customers ability to pay aging of receivables

historical experience and the current economic environment While we believe we have

appropriately considered known or expected outcomes our customers ability to pay their

obligations including those to us could be adversely affected by declining retail sales resulting

from such factors as contraction in the economy or general decline in consumer spending
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Some of our wholesale business units offer seasonal dating programs pursuant to which

customers that qualify for such programs are offered extended payment terms for seasonal

product shipments which is common practice in some of our channels The sales price for our

products sold pursuant to such seasonal dating programs is fixed prior to the time of shipment to

the customer Customers do not have the right to return product except for rights to return that

we believe are typical of our industry for such reasons as damaged goods shipping errors or

similar occurrences We are not required to repurchase products from our customers nor do we

have any regular practice of doing so We believe that we are reasonably assured of payment for

products sold pursuant to such seasonal dating programs based on our historical experience with

the established list of customers eligible for such programs If however product sales by our

Wholesale segments customers during the seasonal selling period should fall significantly below

expectations such customers financial condition could be adversely affected increasing the risk

of not collecting these seasonal dating receivables and possibly resulting in additional bad debt

charges We do not make any sales under consignment or similar arrangements

Inventory valuation

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined by the first-jn first-out

method We write down our inventory for estimated obsolete excess and unmarketable inventory

by an amount equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and the estimated market

value based upon assumptions about future demand market conditions customer planograms and

sales forecasts If market acceptance of our existing products or the successful introduction of

new products should significantly decrease additional inventory write-downs could be required

Potential additional inventory write-downs could result from unanticipated additional quantities

of obsolete finished goods and raw materials and/or from lower disposition values offered by the

parties who normally purchase surplus inventories

Restructuring and impairment charges on long-lived assets

In response to changing market conditions and competition our management regularly updates

our business model and market strategies including the evaluation of facilities personnel and

products Future adverse changes in economic and market conditions could result in additional

organizational changes and possibly additional restructuring and impairment charges

Historically we have re%iewed long-lived assets including property plant and equipment and

other intangibles with definite lives for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicated that the carrying amount of such an asset might not be recoverable Management

determines whether there has been an impairment on long-lived assets held for use in the business

by comparing anticipated undiscounted future cash flow from the use and eventual disposition of

the asset or asset group to the canying value of the asset The amount of any resulting

impairment is calculated by comparing the carrying value to the fair value Long-lived assets that

meet the definition of held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying amount or net realizable

vajue Assets or asset groups are determined at the lowest level possible for which identifiable

cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities For assets

whose aggregate undiscounted cash flows are less than its carrying value the assets are

considered potentially impaired and actual impairments if any would be determined to the extent

the assets carrying value exceeds its aggregate fair value

Goodwill and other indefinite lived intangibles

We had approximately $11.2 million and $10.9 million of goodwill and other indefinite lived

intangibles as of January 31 2010 and 2011 respectively Goodwill and other indefinite lived

intangibles are subject to an assessment for impairment using two-step fair value-based test and

other intangibles are also subject to impairment reviews which are performed at least annually or
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more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that goodwill or other indefinite lived

intangibles might be impaired

We perform our aimual assessment of impairment as of January 31 which is our fiscal year-end

date or as deemed necessary For goodwill the first step is to identifS whether potential

impairment exists This first step compares the fair value of reporting unit to its carrying

amount including goodwill Fair value for each of our reporting units is estimated utilizing

combination of valuation techniques namely the discounted cash flow methodology and the

market multiple methodology The fair value of the reporting units is derived using combination

of the outcome of the two valuation techniques described above and depends in part on whether

the market multiple methodology has sufficient similar transactions occurring in recent

timeframe The discounted cash flow methodology assumes the fair value of an asset can be

estimated by the economic benefit or net cash flows the asset will generate over the life of the

asset discounted to its present value The discounting process uses rate of retum that accounts

for both the time value of money and the investment risk factors The market multiple

methodology estimates fair value based on what other participants in the market have recently

paid for reasonably similar assets Adjustments are made to compensate for differences between

the reasonably similar assets and the assets being valued If the fair value of the reporting unit

exceeds the carrying value no further analysis is necessary If the carrying amount of the

reporting unit exceeds its fair value the second step is performed The second step compares the

carrying amount of the goodwill to the estimated fair value of the goodwill If fair value is less

than the carrying amount an impairment loss is reported as reduction to goodwill and charge

to operating expense

Our assumptions in the discounted cash flow methodology used to support recoverability include

the reporting units five year business outlook The business outlook is five year projection of

the business units financial performance The business outlook includes the cash expected to be

generated from the reporting unit based on certain assumptions for revenue growth capital

spending and profit margins This serves as the basis for the discounted cash flow model in

determining fair value Additionally the discount rate utilized in the cash flow model values the

reporting unit to its net present value taking into consideration the time value of money other

investment risk factors and the terminal value of the business For the terminal value we used

multiple of earnings before income taxes depreciation and amortization EBITDA multiplied

by certain factor for which an independent third party would pay for similar business in an

arms length transaction In determining this factor we used information that was available for

similar transactions executed in the marketplace The multiple of EBITDA used contemplates

among other things the expected revenue growth of the business which in turn would require the

use of higher EBITDA multiple if revenue were expected to grow at higher rate than normal

The following circumstances could impact our cash flow and cause further impairments to

reported goodwill

unexpected increase in competition resulting in lower prices or

lower volumes

entry of new products into the marketplace from competitors

lack of acceptance of our new products into the marketplace

loss of key employee or cuAtonier

significantly higher raw material costs and

economic downturn

other micro/macroeconomic factors
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Goodwill

Miles Kimball

As result of our third quarter of fiscal 2009 impairment assessment we determined that the

goodwill related to the Miles Kimball reporting unit in the Catalog Internet segment was

impaired The Miles Kimball Company continued to experience substantial declines in operating

performance when compared to prior years results and its strategic outlook We believe this

shortfall in performance was primarily attributable to decreased consumer spending due to

changes in the business environment and adverse economic conditions As result of the

impairment analysis performed the goodwill was determined to be fully impaired as the fair

value of the reporting unit was less than its carrying value including goodwill Accordingly we

recorded non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $29.0 million which included the

$1.3 million related to As We Change during the third quarter of fiscal 2009

Direct Selling Segment

In the second quarter of fiscal 2010 ViSalus revised downward its revenues forecast.for the

current fiscal year as result of lower demand for its product reflecting lower consumer spending

attributed to the domestic economic recession and higher than anticipated attrition rate in its

distributor base These factors together required management to focus its efforts on stabilizing its

distributor base and curtailing its international expansion plans Accordingly management
reduced its current year and long-term forecasts in response to the weakening demand for its

products The impairment analysis performed indicated that the goodwill in ViSalus was fully

impaired as its fair value was less than its carrying value including goodwill Accordingly we

recorded non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment charge of $13.2 million during the second

quarter of fiscal 2010 The January 31 2011 impairment assessment of the remaining $2.3

million of the goodwill within this segment indicates that it is fully recoverable

Other

In August 2005 we acquired 100% interest in Boca Java small gourmet coffee and tea

company Boca Java sells its products primarily through the Internet and is included in the

Catalog Internet segment Boca Java represents separate reporting unit and is reviewed for

impairment on an annual basis We completed an impairment ascessment during fiscal 2009

which indicated that the goodwill of $1.9 million was frilly impaired and recorded charge to

write off the goodwill

Sign flcant assumptions

If actual revenue growth profit margins costs and capital spending should differ significantly

from the assumptions included in our business outlook used in the cash flow models the

reporting units fair value could fall significantly below expectations and additional impairment

charges could be required to write down goodwill to its fair value and if necessary other long

lived-assets could be subject to similar fair value test and possible impairment Long-lived

assets represent primarily fixed assets and other long-term assets excluding goodwill and other

intangibles

There are two main assumptions that are used for the discounted cash flow analysis first the

discount rate and second the terminal multiple This discount rate is used to value the gross cash

flows expected to be derived from the business to its net present value The discount rate uses

rate of retum to account for the time value of money and an investment risk factor For the

terminal multiple we used EBITDA multiplied by factor for which an independent third party
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would pay for similar business in an arms length transaction In determining this factor we used

information that was available for similar transactions executed in the marketplace The multiple

of EBITDA used contemplates among other things the expected revenue growth of the business

which in turn would require the use of higher EBITDA multiple if revenue were expected to

grow at higher rate than normal change in the discount rate is often used by management to

alter or temper the discounted cash flow model if there is higher degree of risk that the business

outlook objectives might not be achieved These risks are often based upon the business units past

performance competition confidence in the business unit management position in the

marketplace acceptance of new products in the marketplace and other macro and microeconomic

factors surrounding the business

If management believes there is additional risk associated with the business outlook it will adjust

the discount rate and terminal value accordingly The terminal value is generally multiple of

EBITDA and is discounted to its net present value using the discount rate Capital expenditures

are included and are consistent with the historical business trend plus any known significant

expenditures

Trade Names and Trademarks

Our trade name and trademark intangible assets relate to our acquisitions of Miles Kimball and

V/alter Drake reported in the Catalog Internet segment and our acquisition of controlling

interest in ViSalus in October 2008 reported in the Direct Selling segment We had

approximately $9.0 million and $8.6 million in trade names and trademarks as of January 31
2010 and 2011 respectively

We perform our annual assessment of impairment for indefinite-lived intangible assets as of

January 31 which is our fiscal year-end or upon the occurrence of triggering event We use the

relief from royalty method to estimate the fair value for indefinite-lived intangible assets The

underlying concept of the relief from royalty method is that the inherent economic value of

intangibles is directly related to the timing of future cash flows associated with the intangible

asset Similar to the income approach or discounted cash flow methodology used to determine the

fair value of goodwill the fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assets is equal to the present

value of after-tax cash flows associated with the intangible asset based on an applicable royalty

rate The royalty rate is determined by using existing market comparables for royalty agreements

using an intellectual
property data base The arms-length agreements generally support rate that

is
percentage of direct sales This approach is based on the premise that the free cash flow is

more valid criterion for measuring value than book or accounting profits

As result of our fiscal 2009 impairment assessments we determined that the recorded values of

trade names and trademarks in the Miles Kimball reporting unit in the Catalog Intemet

segment were impaired In the third and fourth quarters of fiscal 2009 we performed additional

impairment assessments due to changes in the business environment and adverse economic

conditions currently experienced due to the continued decrease in consumer spending As result

of these impairment analyses performed the trade names and trademarks in this reporting unit

were determined to be impaired as their fair value was less than their carrying value

Accordingly we recorded non-cash pre-taxithpairment charges of $15.0 million and $2.9 million

in the third and fourth quarters respectively of fiscal 2009

During the second quarter of fiscal 2010 we performed impairment assessments due to adverse

economic conditions currently experienced due to the continued decrease in consumer spending

and higher then expected distributor attrition rate We determined that the recorded values of

trade names trademarks and customer relationships within ViSalus in the Direct Selling

segment were impaired As result of these impairment analyses performed the intangible assets
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were determined to be impaired as their fair value was less than their carrying value

Accordingly we recorded non-cash pre-tax impairment charge of $3.1 million related to the

trade names and trademarks and $0.2 million related to customer relationships

During fiscal 2011 the Exposures brand in the Miles Kimball business within the Catalog

Intemet segment experienced substantial declines in revenues when compared to forecasts and

prior years The Company believes this shortfall in revenue was primarily attributable to

decreased consumer spending and adverse economic conditions As result of the impairment

analysis perfonned the indefinite-lived trade name in this brand was determined to be partially

impaired as the fair value of this brand was less than its carrying value Accordingly the

Company recorded non-cash pre-tax impairment charge of $0.3 million resulting in carrying

value as of January 31 2011 of $1.4 million

As of January 31 2011 we performed our armual impairment analysis on the trade names and

trademarks of the Catalog Intemet and ViSalus assets The three primary assumptions used in

the relief from royalty method are the discount rate the perpetuity growth rate and the royalty

rate This discount rate is used to value the expected net cash flows to be derived from the royalty

to its net present value The discount rate uses rate of retum to account for the time.value of

money and an investment risk factor The perpetuity growth rate estimates the businesses

sustainable long-term growth rate The royalty rate is based upon past royalty performance as

well as the expected royalty growth rate using both macro and microeconomic factors

surrounding the business change in the discount rate is often used by management to risk

adjust the discounted cash flow analysis if there is higher degree of risk that the estimated cash

flows from the indefinite-lived intangible asset may not be fully achieved These risks are often

based upon the business units past performance competition position in the marketplace

acceptance of new products in the marketplace and other macro and microeconomic factors

surrounding the business If however actual cash flows should fall significantly below

expectations this could result in an impairment of our indefinite-lived intangible assets

If the discount rate had increased by 0.5% and royalty rate had decreased by 0.5% the estimated

fair value of the trade names and trademarks within the Catalog Intemet segment would have

decreased by $2.8 million to $4.7 million This decrease would have required us to take an

additional impairment charge of $2.8 million to write-down our indefinite lived intangibles to its

estimated fair value Conversely if the discount rate had decreased by 0.5% and the royalty rate

had increased by 0.5% the estimated fair value of the trade names and trademarks within the

Catalog and Intemet segment would have increased by $3.9 million resulting in no impairment

charge There would have been no impact in the recorded value of the ViSalus trade names and

trademarks within the Direct Selling segment if the same changes in discount and royalty rate

assumptions had occurred as the value would have exceeded its recorded value by $2.8 million

and $8.6 million respectively

Accounting for income taxes

As part of the process of preparing our Consolidated Financial Statements we are required to

estimate our actual current tax exposure state fedetal and foreign together with assessing

permanent and temporary differences resulting from differing bases and treatment of items for tax

and accounting purposes such as the carrying value of intangibles deductibility of expenses

depreciation of property and equipment and valuation of inventories Temporary differences

result in deferred tax assets and liabilities which are included within our Consolidated Balance

Sheets We must then assess the likelihood that our deferred tax assets will be recovered from

future taxable income Actual results could differ from this assessment if sufficient taxable

income is not generated in future periods To the extent we determine the need to establish

valuation allowance or change the allowance in period we would include this as an expense
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within the tax provision in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Earnings Loss
Management periodically estimates our probable tax obligations using historical experience in tax

jurisdictions and informed judgments There are inherent uncertainties related to the interpretation

of tax regulations in the jurisdictions in which we transact business The judgments and estimates

made at point in time may change based on the outcome of tax audits as well as changes to or

further interpretations of regulations If such changes take place there is risk that the tax rate

may increase or decrease in any period Amounts accrued for the tax uncertainties primarily

recorded in Iong-tenn liabilities total $12.3 million and $12.2 million at January 31 2010 and

2011 respectively Accruals relate to tax issues for U.S federal domestic state and taxation of

foreign earnings

Blyths historical policy has been to consider its unremitted foreign earnings as not indefinitely

invested except for amounts deemed required for working capital and expansion needs and as

such provide deferred income tax expense on these undistributed earnings The Company

periodically reassesses whether the non-US subsidiaries will invest their undistributed earnings

indefinitely

As of January 31 2011 we determined that $236.2 million of cumulative undistributed foreign

earnings were not reinvested indefinitely by our non-U.S subsidiaries During fiscal 2010 and

fiscal 2011 we repatriated $150.0 million and $16 million respectively As result $3.3 million

of reduction to deferred taxes was recorded in the current year as an increase to our Net

earnings on those unremitted earnings

In August 2008 state department of revenue proposed to assess additional corporate income

taxes on us for fiscal years 2002 2003 and 2004 in the amount of $34.9 million including interest

and penalties The state department of revenue has subsequently reduced this amount to $16.9

million including interest In February 2011 the state department of revenue issued notice of

intent to assess additional corporate income taxes for fiscal
years 2005 2006 and 2007 in the

amount of $14.0 million including interest and penalties We intend to vigorously protest all of

these assessments As of January 31 2011 we established reserve for this matter which we

believe is adequate based on existing facts and circumstances The ultimate resolution of these

matters could exceed our recorded reserve in the event of an unfavorable outcome however we

cannot estimate such loss at this time

Impact ofAdoption of Recently Issued Accounting Standards

We have reviewed all guidance issued but not implemented as of the filing date and have

determined that only the following could or do have significant affect on our financial statements

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU 20 10-29 Business Combinations Topic 805
Disclosure of supplementary pro forma information for business combinations This update

changes the disclosure of pro forma information for business combinations These changes clarify

that if public entity presents comparative financial statements the entity should disclose

revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination that occurred

during the current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting

period only Also the existing supplemental pro forma disclosures were expanded to include

description of the nature and amount of material nonrecurring pro forma adjustments directly

attributable to the .business combination included in the reported pro forma revenue and earnings

These changes become effective for Blyth beginning February 2011 The Companys adoption

of this update did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or

results of operations
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In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU 20 10-28 Intangible Goodwill and Other Topic

350 When to perform Step of the goodwill impairment test for reporting units with zero or

negative carrying amounts This update requires an entity to perform all steps in the test for

reporting unit whose carrying value is zero or negative if it is more likely than not more than

50% that goodwill impairment exists based on qualitative factors resulting in the elimination

of an entitys ability to assert that such reporting units goodwill is not impaired and additional

testing is not necessary despite the existence of qualitative factors that indicate otherwise These

changes become effective for Blyth beginning February 2011 Based on the most recent

impairment review of Blyth goodwill in January 2011 management has determined these

changes will not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or results of

operations

In April 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-13 Compensation Stock Compensation Topic

718 Effect of Denominating the Exercise Price of Share-Based Payment Award in the

Currency of the Market in Which the Underlying Equity Security Trades consensus of the

FASB Emerging Issues Task Force ASU 2010-13 ASU 2010-13 clarifies that share-based

payment award with an exercise price denominated in the currency of market in which

substantial portion of the entitys equity securities trades should not be considered to.contain

condition that is not market performance or service condition Therefore such an award should

not be classified as liability if it otherwise qualifies as equity This clarification of existing

practice is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning on or

after December 15 2010 with early application permitted The Companys adoption of this

update did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or results of

operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU 20 10-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Topic 820 Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements ASU 20 10-06 ASU
20 10-06 requires new disclosures regarding transfers in and out of the Level and and activity

within Level fair value measurements and clarifies existing disclosures of inputs and valuation

techniques for Level and fair value measurements The new disclosures and clarifications of

existing disclosures are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after

December 15 2009 except for the disclosure of activity within Level fair value measurements

which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods

within those years This update has changed portion of our disclosures beginning february

2010 and will change our disclosure in fiscal 2012 regarding the activity within Level This

update is not expected to have material impact on our consolidated financial condition or results

of operations

Forward-looking and Cautionary Statements

Certain statements contained in this report may constitute forward-looking statements within the

mcaning of the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995 These statements involve

number of risks uncertainties and other factors that could cause actual results to differ materially as

discussed more fully elsewhere in this report and in our previous filings with the Securities and

Exchange Commission
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Item 7A Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

Market Risk

We have operations outside of the United States and sell our products worldwide Our activities

expose us to variety of market risks including the effects of changes in interest rates foreign

currency exchange rates and commodity prices These financial exposures are actively monitored

and where considered appropriate managed by us We enter into contracts with the intention of

limiting these risks with only those counterparties that we deem to be creditworthy in order to

also mitigate our non-performance risk Intemational sales represented 45% of total sales of the

Company for fiscal 2011

Interest Rate Risk

We are subject to interest rate risk variable rate debt As of January 31 2011 we are subject to

interest rate risk on approximately $0.1 million of variable rate debt 1-percentage point

increase in the interest rate would not have significant impact on pre-tax eamings

Investment Risk

We are subject to investment risk on our marketable securities due to market volatility As of

January 31 2011 we held equity instruments with an adjusted cost basis of $13.8 million which

have been adjusted to its fair value based on current market data

Foreign Currency Risk

We use foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge the impact of foreign currency fluctuations

on foreign denominated inventory purchases net assets of our foreign operations intercompany

payables and certain foreign denominated loans We do not hold or issue derivative financial

instruments for trading purposes

The Company has hedged the net assets of certain of its foreign operations through foreign

currency forward contracts The realized and unrealized gains/losses on these hedges are recorded

within AOCI until the investment is sold or disposed of The net after-tax gain related to the

derivative net investment hedges in Accumulated other comprehensive income AOCI as of

January 31 2010 and January 31 2011 was $5.2 million and $5.6 million respectively

We have designated our foreign currency forward contracts related to certain foreign

denominated loans and intercompany payables as fair value hedges The gains or losses on the

fair value hedges are recognized into earnings and generally offset the transaction gains or losses

in the foreign denominated loans that they are intended to hedge

We have designated our forward exchange contracts on forecasted intercompany inventory

purchases and future purchase commitments as cash flow hedges and as such as long as the

hedge remains effective and the underlying transaction remains probable the effective portion of

the changes in the fair valueMf these contracts will be recorded in AOCI until eamings are

affected by the variability of the cash flows being hedged Upon payment of each commitment
the underlying forward contract is closed and the corresponding gain or loss is transferred from

AOCI and is included in the measurement of the cost of the acquired asset If hedging

instrument is sold or terminated prior to maturity gains and losses are deferred in AOCI until the

hedged item is settled However if the hedged item is no longer probable to occur the resultant

gain or loss on the terminated hedge is recognized into eamings immediately The net after-tax
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gain included in AOCI at January 31 2011 is $0.1 million and is expected to be transferred into

earnings within the next twelve months upon settlement of the underlying commitment

For consolidated financial statement presentation net cash flows from such hedges are classified

in the categories of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows with the items being hedged

The following table provides information about our foreign exchange forward contracts

accounted for as cash flow hedges as of January 31 2011

US Dollar Average Unrealized

In thousands except average contmct rate Notional Amount Contract Rate Gain Loss

canadisa Dollar 2050 00 15

Euro 11475 132 181

13525 166

The foreign exchange contracts outstanding have maturity dates through October 2011
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Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Blyth Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Blyth Inc and Subsidiaries

the Company as of January 31 2011 and 2010 and the related consolidated statements of

earnings loss stockholders equity and cash flows for the years then ended Our audits also

included the financial statement schedule listed at Item 5a2 These financial statements and

schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these financial statements and schedule based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material

misstatement An audit ineludes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and

disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles

used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial

statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects

the consolidated financial position of the Company at January 31 2011 and 2010 and the

consolidated results of their operations and their cash flows for the
years

then ended in

conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles Also in our opinion the related

financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the basic financial statements taken

as whole presents fairly in all material respects the information set forth therein

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the Companys internal control over financial reporting as of

January 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framwork issued

by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commissionand our report

dated April 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LU

Stamford Connecticut

April 2011
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To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of Blyth Inc

Greenwich Connecticut

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of loss consolidated stockholders

equity and consolidated cash flows for the period ended January 31 2009 of Blyth Inc and

subsidiaries the Company Our auditsaudit also included information for fiscal year ended

2009 in the financial statement schedule listed in the Index at Item 15 These financial statements

and financial statement schedule are the responsibility of the Companys management Our

responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements and financial statement

schedule based on our auditsaudit

We conducted our auditsaudit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform

the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of

material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the

accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating

the overall financial statement presentation We believe that our auditsaudit provide reasonable

basis for our opinion

In our opinion such consolidated financial statements referred to above of Blyth Inc and

subsidiaries present fairly in all material respects the results of their operations and their cash

flows of Blyth Inc and subsidiaries for the period ended January 31 2009 in conformity with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America Also in our opinion

the 2009 information in such financial statement schedule when considered in relation to the

basic consolidated financial statements taken as whole presents fairly in all material respects

the information set forth therein

As discussed in Note to the consolidated financial statements the accompanying consolidated

financial statements have been retrospectively adjusted for the adoption of new accounting

guidance for the presentation and disclosure of noncontrolling interests

/S/ DEL OITTE TOUCHE LLP

Stamford Connecticut

April 13 2009 April 2010 as to the effects of the immaterial restatement discussed in Note

and the effects of the adoption of new accounting guidance for the presentation and disclosure of

noncontrolling interests as discussed in Note
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BLYTII INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

As of January 31 In thousands except share and per sham data 2010 2011

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents 207394 205748
Short-term investments 5000 8700

Accounts receivable less allowance for doubtful receivables

$2243 in 2010 and $1344 in 2011 18694 17586

Inventories 102203 108222

Prepald and other 23997 27583
Deferred income taxes

Total current assets

6769 2096

364057 369935

Property plant and equipment at cost

Land and buildings 103997 103521

Leasehold improvements 7944 8212

Machinery and equipment 129299 127703

Office furniture data processing equipment and software 68641 64758
Construction in pregress 914 1643

310795 305837

Less accumulated depreciation 202808 204336

107987 101501

Other assets

Investments 19072 7576

Goodill 2298 2298
Other intangible assets net of accumulated amortization of$ 12254 in 2010 and $13338 in 2011 12176 10792
Other assets

Total other assets

total assets

17403 9663

50949 30329

22993 501765

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY
Current liabilities

Current maturities of long-term debt 582 1330

Accounts payable 57338 51783
Accrued expenses 60895 61102

Dividend payable 8826

Income taxes payable

Total current liabilities

4913 3581

132554 117796
Deferred income taxes 686 2049

Long-term debt less current maturities 109962 109655

Other liabilities 24984 25195

Commitments and contingencies

Redeemable noncontrolling interest 1470
Stockholders equity

Preferred stock authorized 10000000 shares of $0.01 par value no shares issued

Common stock authorized 50000000 shares of $0.02 par value

isswdl2765919 sharesin2Oloandl2791515 sharesin2Oll 255 256

Additional contributed capital 144233 146355

Retained earnings 494524 510102
Accumulated other comprehensive income 20591 16951

Treasuty stock at cost 3972112 shares in 2010 and 4561014 shares in 2011

Total stockholders equity

403329 424210
256274 249454

Noncontrolling interest

Total equity 256277
Total liabilities and equity 522993

The accompanying notes are an.integral part of these consolidated financial statements

2384
247070

501765
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BLYTH INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
Consolidated Statements of Earnings Loss

For the year ended Januaiy 31 In thousands except per share data 2009 2010 2011

Net sales 1050793 958077 900927

Cost of goods sold

Gmss
profit

Selling

473577 432578 401297

577216 525499 499630

400658 367487 337191

Administrative 123779 111531 115832

Goodwill and other intangibles impainnent

Total operating expense

Operating profit

Other expense income

48751 16498

573188 495516 453023

4028 29983 46607

Inteitst expense

Inteitst income

Foreign exchange and other net

Total other expense

Earnings loss before income taxes

10001

4261

9813

7755

1410

1564

7209

1007

1999

15553 7909 8201

11525 22074 38406

Income tax expense

Net earnings loss

3840 5649 13618

15365 16425 24788

Less Net earnings loss attributable to the noncontmlling interests

Net earnings loss attributable to Blyth Inc

115 1269 768

15480 17694 25556

Basic

Net earnings loss attributable per Blyth Inc common share

Weighted average number of shares outstanding

1.73

8971

1.99

8912

3.02

8462

Diluted

Net earnings loss attributable per Blyth Inc common share 1.73 1.98 3.00

Weighted average number of shares outstanding 8971 8934 8508

Cashdividenddeclaredpershare 2.16 1.20 1.20

The accompanying notes are an mt egral part of these consolidatedflnancial statements
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BLYTH INC AND SUBSIDIARIES
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Year ended January 31 In thousands

BLYTH INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Lash flows 1mm operating activities

Net earnings loss

Adjustments to reconcile net earnings loss to net cash

pmvided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization

Goodwill and other intangibles impainnent charges

Impairment of assets

Gain Loss on sale of assets

Stock-based compensation expense

Unrealized loss on trading investments

Deferred income taxes

Equity in earnings losses of investee

Gain on pension plan termination

Changes in operating assets and
liabilities net of

effect of business acquisitions and divestitures

Accounts receivable

Inventories

Prepaid and other

Other long-term assets

Accounts payable

Accrued expenses

Other liabilities

Income taxes

Net cash provided by operating activities

Lash flows fmm investing activities

Purchases of property plant and equipment net of disposal proceeds

Purchases of short-term investments

Proceeds fmm sales of short-term investments

Note receivable issued under revolving credit facility

Proceeds fmm the repayment of note receivable

Proceeds fmm sales of assets net of costs

Purchases of long-term investments

Proceeds fmm sale of long-term investments

Purchase of businesses net of cash acquired

Cash settlement of net investment hedges

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

8471 6159

12021 12477

71 198

2009 2010 2011

15365 16425 24788

18628 16592 13697

48751 16498

8034 376 3523

13 30 267
1836 2695 2123

2096

13376 6630 8827

116 120 587

1902

5062 10977 926

5972 36160 7183
7566 252 2001

2510 1268 1793

7800 9666 4105
15068 5753 72

5679 4090 6390
6722 12574 1048

37M42 93370 39344

X173 5384 8218
69716 5000 6899
84777 11892

4416
4416

36 3939 21

3070 521
7204 6494 2237

15814
6563 638

4756 6091 329
Cash flows from financing activities

Purchaces of treasury stock 11093 3981 20557
Bormwings from bank line of credit 560800

Repayments on bank line of credit 560800
Borrowings on long-term debt 2660 840

Repayments on long-term debt 12682 37774 535
Payments on capital

lease obligations 507 187 113
Dividends paid 19406 1785 18803
Distributions to noncontrolling interest

Net cash used in financing activities

198 149
43688 41265 39317

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

5995 2774 1344
16597 60970 1646

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

163021 146424 207394

146424 207394 205748

Supplementai oisciosure or casn now imormauon

Cash paid during the year for

Interest 9547
Income taxes 7643

Non-cash transactions

Capital leases for equipment 30

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolittatedfinancial statements
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BLYTH INC AND SUBSIDIARIES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Blyth Inc the Company is multi-channel company competing primarily in the home

fragrance and decorative accessories industry The Company designs markets and distributes an

extensive array of decorative and functional household products including candles accessories

seasonal decorations household convenience items and personalized gifts as well as products for

the foodservice trade nutritional supplements and weight management products The Company

competes in the global home expressions industry and the Companys products can be found

throughout North America Europe and Australia Our financial results are reported in three

segments the Direct Selling segment the Catalog Intemet segment and the Wholesale

segment

summary of the significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of the accompanying

consolidated financial statements follows

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of Blyth Inc and its subsidiaries The

Company consolidates entities in which it owns or controls more than 50% of the voting shares

and/or investments where the Company has been determined to have control The portion of the

entity not owned by the Company is reflected as the noncontrolling interest within the Equity

section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets and in the case of the redeemable noncontrolling

interest within the mezzanine section of the Consolidated Balance Sheets between Long-term

liabilities and Equity Investments in companies that are not consolidated but where we have

significant influence are reported using the equity method and are recorded in Other assets in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets All inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated

in consolidation

Certain of the Companys subsidiaries operate on 52 or 53-week fiscal year ending on the

Saturday nearest to January 31st European Mexican and Australian operations and one

domestic direct selling entity maintain calendar year accounting period which is consolidated

with the Companys fiscal period The application of this consolidation policy has been

consistently applied and has not had significant impact on the Companys consolidated financiai

condition or results of operations

Effective February 2009 the Company has adopted the requirements of ASC 810

Consolidation AS 810 which establishes accounting and reporting standards for

noncontrolling interests including changes in parents ownership interest in subsidiary and

requires among other things that noncontrolling interests in subsidiaries be classified within

equity As result of the adoption the Company has reported noncontrolling interests other than

Redeemable noncontrolling interests as component of equity in the Consolidated Balance

Sheets and the Net earnings loss attributable to the noncontrolling interests has been separately

disclosed in the Consolidated Statements ofarnings Loss The prior periods presented have

also been retrospectively resTtated to cohforth to the current classification required by ASC 810

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting

principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported

amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities as of the date of
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the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

period Actual results could differ from those estimates

Credit Concentration

The Companys credit sales are principally to department and gift stores mass merchandisers and

distributors which purchase the Companys products for resale The Company performs ongoing

credit evaluations of its customers and generally does not require collateral The Company makes

provisions for estimated credit losses No single customer accounts for 10% or more of Net Sales

One customer within the Wholesale segment accounted for $1.9 million or approximately 10% of

the Accounts Receivables balance as of January 31 2011

Foreign Cnrrency Translation

The Companys international subsidiaries generally use their local currency as their functional

currency Therefore all Balance Sheet accounts of international subsidiaries are translated into

U.S dollars at the year-end rates of exchange and Statement of Earnings Loss items are

translated using the weighted average exchange rates for the period Resulting translfttion

adjustments are included in Accumulated other comprehensive income loss AOCI within

the Consolidated Balance Sheets Transactional gains and losses arising from the impact of

currency exchange rate fluctuations on transactions in currency other than the local functional

currency are included in Foreign exchange and other net within the Consolidated Statements of

Earnings Loss

Investments

The Company makes investments from time to time in the ordinary course of its business that

may include common and preferred equity securities debt instruments and long-term

investments and/or joint ventures The Companys investments are accounted for in accordance

with the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Codification

ASC Topics 320 to 325 Investments The Company reviews investments for impairment

using both quantitative and qualitative factors Unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale

investment securities that are considered temporary and are not the result of credit loss are

included in AOCL net of applicablc taxes while realized gains and losses are reported in

eamings For investments held as trading all realized and unrealized gains and losses are reported

in earnings The equity method of accounting is used to account for investments in common stock

in which the Company owns less than the majority of voting stock and has the ability to exercise

significant influence over the operating and financial policies of the investee but lacks control

Derivatives and Other Financial Instruments

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge the impact of foreign currency

fluctuations on foreign denominated inventory purchases intercompany payabies and certain

loans It does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for trading purposes The

Company has also hedged the net assets of certaifl of its foreign operations through foreign

currency forward contracts

The Company has designated forward exchange contracts on forecasted intercompany purchases

and purchase commitments as cash flow hedges and as long as the hedge remains effective and the

underlying transaction remains probable the effective portion of the changes in the fair value of

these contracts are recorded in AOCI until earnings are affected by the variability of the cash flows

being hedged With regard to commitments for inventory purchases upon payment of each

commitment the underlying forward contract is closed and the corresponding gain or loss is
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transferred from AOCI and is realized in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings Loss If

hedging instrument is sold or terminated prior to maturity gains and losses are deferred in AUCI

until the hedged item is settled However if the hedged item is probable of no longer occurring the

resultant gain or loss on the terminated hedge is recognized into earnings immediately

The Company has designated its foreign currency forward contracts related to certain foreign

denominated loans and intercompany payables as fair value hedges The gains or losses on the

fair value hedges are recognized into earnings and generally offset the transaction gains or losses

in the foreign denominated loans that they are intended to hedge

For consolidated financial statement presentation net cash flows from such hedges are classified

in the categories of the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows with the items being hedged
Forward contracts held with each bank are presented within the Consolidated Balance Sheets as

net asset or liability based on netting agreements with each bank and whether the forward

contracts are in net gain or loss position Refer to Note for further details on our accounting

for derivative instruments

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly-liquid debt instruments purchased with an original maturity of

three months or less to be cash equivalents Insignificant amounts due from credit card companies

for the settlement of credit card transactions are included in cash equivalents because they are both

short-term and highly-liquid instruments and typically take one to three business days to be received

by the Company The major credit card companies making these payments are highly accredited

businesses and the Company does not deem them as having material counterparty credit risk

The Company holds its cash investments with high credit quality financial institutions Cash

balances in the Companys U.S concentration accounts are insured by the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation up to $250000 per bank The Company has $2.1 million of restricted cash

in certificate of deposit that is used as collateral to standby letters of credit which is reported in

Investments This cash will be restricted until the standby letters of credit are relieved by the

beneficiaries

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market Cost is determined by the first-in first-out

method The Company records provisions for obsolete excess and unmarketable inventory in

Cost of goods sold

Shipping and Handling

Th Company classifies shipping and handling fees billed to customers as Revenue and shipping

arid handling costs as Cost of goods sold

Property Plant and Equipment

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation Depreciation

expense for fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 was $17.0 million $15.2 million and $13.5 million

respectively The amortization of assets obtained through capital leases is also recorded as

component of depreciation expense Depreciation is provided for principally by use of the

straight-line method for financial reporting purposes Leasehold improvements are amortized
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over the lives of the respective leases or the service lives of the improvements whichever is

shorter The Company records gains and losses from the sale of property plant and equipment in

operating profit

During fiscal 2009 $6.7 million relating to distribution center within the Wholesale segment

was reclassified to long-term asset available for sale within Other assets in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets In December 2010 the Company entered into contract to sell the distribution

center As result the Company reclassified the asset from Other Assets to current asset within

Prepaid and other in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

In January 2011 the Company reviewed the recoverability of its Boca Java assets within the

Catalog and Internet segment due to the continued decline in revenues and profitability and

managements planned disposal of the assets As result of this decline management concluded

the assets of Boca Java were not fully recoverable and recorded an impairment charge of $0.9

million to write off certain assets of Boca Java The depreciation expense for the year as stated

above includes this impairment Refer to Note 22 for more detailed discussion on this

transaction

The principal estimated lives used in determining depreciation are as follows

Buildings 27 to 40 years

Leasehold improvements to 10 years

Machinery and equipment to 12 years

Office ftimiture data processing equipment and software to years

Goodwill and Other Indefinite Lived Intangibles

Goodwill and Other indefinite-lived intangibles are subject to an assessment for impairment at

least annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that goodwill or other

indefmite lived intangibles might be impaired The Company performs its annual assessment of

impairment as of January 31

For goodwill the first step is to identify whether potential impairment exists This is done by

comparing the fair value of reporting unit to its carrying amount inciuding goodwill Fair value

for each of the Companys reporting units is estimated utilizing combination of valuation

techniques namely the discounted cash flow methodology and the market multiple analysis The

discounted cash flow analysis assumes the fair value of an asset can be estimated by the economic

benefit or net cash flows the asset will generate over the life of the asset discounted to its present

value The discounting process uses rate of return that accounts for both the time value of money
and the investment risk factors The market multiple analysis estimates fair value based on what

other participants in the market have recently paid for reasonably similar assets Adjustments are

made to compensate for differences between the reasonably similar assets and the assets being

valued If the fair value of the reporting unit exceeds the carrying value no ffirther analysis is

necessary The fair value of the reporting units is derived by using combination of the two

valuation techniques described above If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair

value the second step is performed The second step compares the carrying amount of the goodwill

to the estimated fair value of the goodwill If fair value is less than the canying amount an

impairment loss is reported as reduction to the goodwill and charge to operating expense

For indefinite-lived intangible assets the Company uses the relief from royalty method to

estimate the fair value for indefinite-lived intangible assets and compares this value to book

value The underlying concept of the relief from royalty method is that the inherent economic

value of intangibles is directly related to the timing of future cash flows associated with the
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intangible asset Similar to the income approach or discounted cash flow methodology used to

detennine the fair value of goodwill the fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assets is equal to

the present value of after-tax cash flows associated with the intangible asset based on an

applicable royalty rate The royalty rate is determined by using existing market comparables for

royalty agreements The arms-length agreements generally support rate that is percentage of

direct sales This approach is based on the premise that the free cash flow is more valid criterion

for measuring value than book or accounting profits

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company reviews long-lived assets including property plant and equipment and other

intangibles with definite lives for impairment or whenever events or changes in circumstances

indicated that the carrying amount of such an asset might not be recoverable When indicators are

present management determines whether there has been an impairment on long-lived assets held

for use in the business by comparing anticipated undiscounted future cash flow from the use and

eventual disposition of the asset or asset group to the carrying value of the asset The amount of

any resulting impairment is calculated by comparing the carrying value to the fair value Long-

lived assets that meet the definition of held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying amount or

net realizable value Assets or asset groups are determined at the lowest level possible for which

identifiable cash flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities For

assets whose aggregate undiscounted cash flows are less than its carrying value the assets are

considered potentially impaired and actual impairments if any would be determined to the extent

the assets carrying value exceeds its aggregate fair value

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss includes net earnings loss as reported in the

Consolidated Statements of Eamings Loss and Other Comprehensive Income Loss OCI
OCI is comprised of foreign currency cumulative translation adjustments unrealized gains and

losses on certain investments in debt and equity securities the net gains and losses on cash flow

hedgihg instruments and net investment hedges and realized gain on Pension Plan termination

The Company reports by major components and as single total the change in comprehensive

income loss during the period as part
of the Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity

The following table presents the components of the Companys AOCI net of deferred tax liabilities

of $9.0 million and $8.6 million as of January 31 2010 and 2011 respectively

Foreign Unrealized Net gain

currency gain loss on loss on Net gain on Acenmulated other

translation certain cash flow net investment comprehensive-- investments hedees hedoes income lossIn thousands

nauce at January 31 2010 16059 737 72 5197 20591

nalanceatjanuary3l.2o11 10951 534 130 5596 16951

Income Taxes

Income tax expense is based on taxable income statutory tax rates and the impact of non

deductible items Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the expected tax

consequences of temporary differences between the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their

reported amounts The Company periodically estimates whether its tax benefits are more likely

than not sustainable on audit based on the technical merits of the position There are inherent

uncertainties related to the interpretation of tax regulations in the jurisdictions in which the

Company transacts business The judgments and estimates made at point in time may change

based on the outcome of tax audits as well as changes to or further interpretations of regulations
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If such changes take place there is risk that the Companys tax rate may increase or decrease in

any period

Deferred tax assets and liabilities reflect the Companys best estimate of the tax benefits and costs

expected to realize in the future The Company establishes valuation allowances to reduce its

deferred tax assets to an amount that will more likely than not be realized

In accordance with ASC 740 Income Taxes ASC 740 the Company recognizes the tax

benefit from an uncertain tax position only if it is more likely than not that the tax position will be

capable of withstanding examination by the taxing authorities based on the technical merits of the

position number of years may elapse before an uncertain tax position for which we have

established tax reserve is audited and finally resolved and the number of years for which we

have audits that are open varies depending on the tax jurisdiction current summary is provided

in Note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements When facts and circumstances change we

reassess these probabilities and record any necessary adjustments to the provision

During fiscal 2010 and 2011 the Company determined that portion of its undistributed foreign

eamings are not reinvested indefinitely by its non-U.S subsidiaries and accordingly recorded

deferred income tax expense related to these undistributed eamings The Company periodically

reassesses whether the non-U.S subsidiaries will invest their undistributed earnings indefinitely

Revenue Recognition

Revenues consist of sales to customers net of retums and allowances The Company recognizes

revenue upon delivery when both title and risk of loss are transferred to the customer The

Company presents revenues net of any taxes collected from customers and remifted to

governmental authorities

The Company records estimated reductions to revenue for customer programs which may
include special pricing agreements for specific customers volume incentives and other

promotions The Company also records reductions to revenue based primarily on historical

experience for estimated customer returns and chargebacks that may arise as result of shipping

errors product damage in transit or for other reasons that can only become known subsequent to

recognizing thc revenue In some instances the Company receives payment in advance of

product delivery Such advance payments occur primarily in the direct selling and direct

marketing channels and are recorded as deferred revenue Upon delivery of product for which

advance payment has been made the related deferred revenue is reversed and recorded to

revenue Gift card sales are also included in deferred revenue Upon expiration or redemption the

related deferred revenue is recorded to revenue The Company considers applicable escheat laws

and historical redemption data when realizing gift card revenue

The Company has established an allowance for doubtful accounts for its trade and note

receivables The allowance is determined based on the Companys evaluation of specific

customers ability to pay aging of receivables historical experience and the current economic

environment

Some of the Companys business units offer seasonal dating programs pursuant to which

qualifing customers are offered extended payment terms for seasonal product shipments which

is common practice in some of its industries The sales price for the Companys products sold

pursuant to such seasonal dating programs is fixed prior to the time of shipment to the customer

Customers do not have the right to retum product except for rights to return that the Company
believes are typical of the industry for such reasons as damaged goods shipping errors or similar

occurrences The Company is not required to repurchase products from its customers and does
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not have regular practice of doing so The Company does not make any sales under consignment

or similar arrangements

Earnings per Common and Common Equivalent Share

Basic earnings per common share and common share equivalents are computed based upon the

weighted average number of shares outstanding during the period These outstanding shares

include both outstanding common shares and vested restricted stock units RSU5 as common
stock equivalents Diluted earnings per common share and common share equivalents reflect the

potential dilution that could oecur if options and fixed awards to be issued under stock-based

compensation arrangements were converted into common stock

Employee Stock Compensation

The Company has share-based compensation plans as described in Note 17 to the Consolidated

Financial Statements In accordance with U.S Generally Accepted Accounting Principals

GAAP the Company measures and records compensation expense based on estimated fair

values for all share-based awards made to employees and directors including stock pptions

restricted stock and restricted stock units The Company recognizes compensation expense for

share-based awards expected to vest on straight-line basis over the requisite service period of

the award based on their grant date fair value

Operating Expenses

Cost of goods sold includes the cost of raw materials and their procurement costs inbound and

outbound freight and the direct and indirect costs associated with the personnel resources and

property plant and equipment related to the manufacturing warehousing inventory management
and order fulfillment functions Selling expenses include customer service costs the costs

associated with trade shows and showrooms catalog costs including printing and shipping

commissions paid to consultants the salaries and benefits related to personnel within the

marketing and selling functions costs associated with promotional offers to independent

consultants and other selling and marketing expenses Administrative and other expenses

includes salaries and related benefits associated with various administrative departments

including human resources legal information technology finance and executive as well as

professional fees and administrative facility costs associated with leased buildings office

equipment and supplies

Promotional Offers to Independent Consultants Hostesses and Guests

PartyLites sales are generated by its independent consultants who strive to maximize three

interrelated objectives namely selling product scheduling or booking parties and recruiting

new consultants In order to encourage its consultants to accomplish these goals PartyLite makes

monthly promotional offers including free or discounted products to hostesses and guests holding

and attending shows and annual incentive trips and the payment of bonuses to consultants

Promotions including free or discounted products are designed to increase revenues by providing

incentives for guests attending the parties and hostesses holding the shows These include

discounted product offers to hostesses who hold shows or meet certain sales objectives at the

shows offering free or discounted products to guests whose purchases exceed certain level

and offering special party only discount offers by guests attending show Promotional

offers for free products are recorded as charge to Cost of goods sold when incurred and

promotional offers for discounted products are recorded as reduction of revenue when incurred

with the full cost of the product being charged to Cost of goods sold
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Annual incentive trips paid for by PartyLite for consultants and bonuses usually in the form of

cash or an allowance against the cost of an incentive trip are awarded to consultants who recruit

new consultants during promotional periods or achieve certain sales levels Estimated costs

related to these promotional offers are recorded as compensation within Selling expense as they

are earned During fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 related promotional expenses were recorded of

$9.8 million $8.2 million and $7.2 million respectively

Advertising and Catalog Costs

The Company expenses the costs of advertising as incurred except the costs for direct-response

advertising which are capitalized and amortized over the expected period of future benefit

Direct-response advertising relates to the Miles Kimball business and consists primarily of the

costs to produce direct-mail order catalogs The capitalized production costs are amortized for

each specific catalog mailing over the period following catalog distribution in proportion to

revenues orders received compared to total estimated revenues for that particular catalog

mailing The amortization period is generally from three to six months and does not exceed

twelve months

In certain of the Companys Wholesale and Direct Selling businesses catalog production costs

are capitalized and expensed as the catalogs are distributed generally over less than twelve

month period

Other

On January 30 2009 the Company executed -for-4 reverse stock split Concurrent with this

split the Company reduced its authorized common shares from 100000000 to 50000000 but did

not adjust the par value of each common share which was and remains at $0.02 per share The

fiscal 2009 Common stock and Additional contributed capital balances should have reflected this

adjustment The Company has corrected the classification between these two equity accounts

The following table displays the impact to the individual line items of the Consolidated Balance

Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity as of January 31 2009

In thousands As Previously Reported As Restated Adjustment

Common stock 1019 255 764

Additional contributed capital 140543 141307 764

This immaterial restatement had no impact on the Companys consolidated financial position

results of operations or cash flows

Note New Accounting Pronouncements

The following is list of accounting standard/updates either adopted by the Company for fiscal

2011 or standards that couldiave sigæificânt impact on future financial statements or

disclosures upon adoption

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU 20 10-29 Business Combinations Topic 805
Disclosure of supplementary pro forma information for business combinations This update

changes the disclosure of pro forma information for business combinations These changes clarify

that if public entity presents comparative financial statements the entity should disclose

revenue and earnings of the combined entity as though the business combination that occurred
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during the current year had occurred as of the beginning of the comparable prior annual reporting

period only Also the existing supplemental pro forma disclosures were expanded to include

description of the nature and amount of material nonrecurring pro form adjustments directly

attributable to the business combination included in the reported pro
forma revenue and earnings

These changes become effective for Blyth beginning February 2011 The Companys adoption

of this update did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or

results of operations

In December 2010 the FASB issued ASU 20 10-28 Intangible Goodwill and Other Topic

350 When to perform Step of the goodwill impairment test for reporting units with zero or

negative carrying amounts This update requires an entity to perform all steps in the test for

reporting unit whose carrying value is zero or negative if it is more likely than not more than

50% that goodwill impairment exists based on qualitative factors resulting in the elimination

of an entitys ability to assert that such reporting units goodwill is not impaired and additional

testing is not necessary despite the existence of qualitative factors that indicate otherwise These

changes become effective for Blyth beginning February 2011 Based on the most recent

impairment review of Blyths goodwill in January 2011 management has determined these

changes will not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or results of

operations

In January 2010 the FASB issued ASU 20 10-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures

Topic 820 Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurements ASU 20 10-06 ASU
20 10-06 requires new disclosures regarding transfers in and out of the Level and and activity

within Level fair value measurements and clarifies existing disclosures of inputs and valuation

techniques for Level and fair value measurements The new disclosures and clarifications of

existing disclosures are effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after

December 15 2009 except for the disclosure of activity within Level fair value measurements

which is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15 2010 and for interim periods

within those years The adoption of this update did not have material impact on the Companys
consolidated financial condition or results of operations

In April 2010 the FASB issued ASU 2010-13 CompensationStock Compensation Topic

718 Effect of Denominating the Exercise Price of Share-Based Payment Award in the

Currency of the Market in Which the Underlying Equity Security Trades consensus of the

FASB Emerging Issues Task Force ASU 20 10-13 ASU 20 10-13 clarifies that share-based

payment award with an exercise price denominated in the currency of market in which

substantial portion of the entitys equity securities trades should not be considered to contain

condition that is not market performance or service condition Therefore such an award should

not be classified as liability if it otherwise qualifies as equity This clarification of existing

practice is effective for fiscal years and interim periods within those fiscal years beginning on or

after December 15 2010 with early application permitted The Companys adoption of this

update did not have an impact on the Companys consolidated financial condition or results of

operations

Note Business Acquisitions

In August 2008 the Companly signed defiulitive agreement to purchase ViSalus Holdings LLC

ViSalus direct seller of weight management products nutritional supplements and energy

drinks through series of investments

On October 21 2008 the Company completed its initial investment and acquired 43.6% equity

interest in ViSalus for $13.0 million in cash Additionally as provided in the acquisition agreement

and amended in September 2009 the Company has provided ViSalus with $3.0 million revolving
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credit facility through July 2014 of which $3.0 million was outstanding as of January 31 2011 and

2010 The Company may be required to make additional purchases of ViSalus equity interest to

increase our equity ownership over time to 57.5% 72.7% and 100.0% These additional

purchases are conditioned upon ViSalus meeting certain operating targets in calendar years 2010

2011 and 2012 The purchase prices of the additional investments are based on ViSalus future

operating results The Company has the option to acquire the remaining interest in ViSalus even

if they do not meet the predefined operating targets

The Company has accounted for the acquisition of ViSalus as business combination under SFAS

No 141 Business Combinations since the Company obtained control of ViSalus prior to the

effective date of ASC 805 The Company analyzed the criteria for consolidation in accordance with

ASC 810 and has determined it has control of ViSalus based on the following factors ViSalus is

currently majority owned collectively by Blyth and Ropart Asset Management Fund LLC and

Ropart Asset Management Fund II LLC collectively RAM related party see Note 16 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information Moreover the Company has taken

into account the composition of ViSalus three-member board of managers one of whom is an

executive officer of the Company one of whom is principal of RAM and one of whom is

founder and executive officer of ViSalus Additionally the Company and RAM together control

ViSalus compensation committee and control the compensation of the ViSalus executive officer

who serves on ViSalus board of managers Consequently all of the members of ViSalus board of

managers may be deemed to operate under the Companys influence

The Company has also taken into account ViSalus goveming documents which afford the

Company significant rights with
respect

to major corporate actions and the right to force the other

owners of ViSalus equity instruments to sell them in some corporate transactions Finally the

Company considered the mechanisms that are in place to permit it to purchase the remaining

noncontrolling interest in ViSalus over the next several years

As discussed above the Company is required to purchase the remaining noncontrolling interests

in ViSalus if ViSalus meets certain operating targets As result these noncontrolling interests

were determined to be redeemable and are accounted for in accordance with the guidance of ASC

480-10-599-3A and the non-codified portions of Emerging Issues Task Force Topic D-98

Classification and Measurement of Redeemable Securities Accordingly the Company had

begun recognizing these noncontrolling interests outside of permanent equity and accreted

changes in their redemption value through the date of redemption during the time at which it was

probable that the noncontrolling interests would be redeemed The accretion of the redemption

value had been recognized as charge to retained earnings and to the extent that the resulting

redemption value exceeds the fair value of the noncontrolling interests the differential was

reflected in the Companys earnings per
share EPS During the second quarter of fiscal 2010

ViSalus revenue forecast for the prior fiscal year was revised downward as result of lower

demand for its product reflecting lower consumer spending attributed to the domestic economic

recession and higher than anticipated attrition rate in its distributor base These factors together

have required management to focus its efforts on stabilizing its distributor base and curtailing its

international expansion plans Accordingly management reduced its long-term forecasts in

response to the weakening demand for its proucts The revisions in ViSalus near-term ard1ong-

term projections have resulted in management concluding that it is no longer probable that Blyth

would be obligated to purchase the remaining ownership interest in ViSalus Accordingly during

the second quarter of fiscal 2010 the Company reversed both its accretion of its redeemable

noncontrolling interest to zero and the previous EPS accretion adjustment for the portion in

excess of fair value ViSalus did not meet its predefined operating target for calendar year 2010

However we have the right to waive this requirement and increase our ownership interest to

57.5% As such the amount representing the allocation of losses equivalent to the noncontrolling

interest in ViSalus has been reclassified to Stockholders equity as noncontrolling interest as it is
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no longer redeemable If we elect to increase our ownership interest to 57.5% in ViSalus in 2011
the noncontrolling interest will become redeemable and as such we will be required to make the

additional purchases of ViSalus in 2012 and 2013 if ViSalus meets it predefined operating targets

in those years

If ViSalus meets its projected operating targets the total expected redemption value of

noncontrolling interest will be approximately $37.6 million paid through 2014 The total expected

redemption value could increase or decrease depending upon whether ViSalus exceeds or falls

short of its operating projections

The acquisition of ViSalus by Blyth involves related parties as discussed in Note 16 to the

Consolidated Financial Statements In addition to Blyth the other owners of ViSalus consist of

its three founders each of whom currently own approximately 11.7% of ViSalus for total of

35.3% the founders RAM which currently owns 15.2% and small group of employees

who collectively own approximately 5.9% of ViSalus Blyths initial investment in ViSalus of

$13.0 million was paid to ViSalus $2.5 million RAM $3.0 million and each of the three

founders $2.5 million each Mr Goergen Blyths chairman and chief executive officer

beneficially owns approximately 33.4% of Blyths outstanding common stock and together with

members of his family owns substantially all of RAM

On February 2010 \iSalus received financing commitment from the founders and RAM for

up to $1.2 million to fund its operations for calendar year 2010 $0.6 million of which has been

borrowed as of January 31 2011 The loan is due on February 28 2011 and interest accrues at

10% per annum payable quarterly in arrears In addition to the 10% interest the loan requires

ViSalus to pay further lump-sum interest payment at maturity of $0.6 million in addition to its

principal amount due In April 2010 the Company also loaned ViSalus an additional $0.3

million which is due on February 28 2011 The loan accrues interest at 10% per annum payable

quarterly in arrears These loans are secured by ViSalus assets and have preference over all

existing loans from the founders RAM and the Company

As of January 31 2011 ViSalus had outstanding notes payable excluding interest to RAM and

the founders of $3.2 million in addition to $3.3 million due to Blyth

On February 28 2011 ViSalus repaid $0.6 million of the loan due to founders and RAM and also

the lump-sum interest payment of $0.6 million due at maturity on the loan In March 2011
ViSalus paid the loan balance of $3 .3 million including interest accrued due to Blyth

Note Restructuring and Impairment Charges

During fiscal 2007 the Company recorded charges related to the restructuring of the North

American operations of the Direct Selling segment in recognition of the decline in sales in this

channel Restructuring charges associated with the termination of 91 employees included

severance costs ofSl.5 million and lease termination expenses of $0.5 million related to the

impairment of North American distribution facility Adjustments to lease termination costs of

$1.7 million $0.1 million and $0.8 million were recorded to Costs of goods sold in fiscal 2009

2010 and 2011 respectively based on changs in our estimate of the ability to sub-lease the

property In fiscal 2011 given the limited lase term and market conditions the Company fully

impaired the lease assuming no ffiture sub-lease income through its lease expiration in fiscal

2013

The following is tabular rollforward of the restructuring charges described above that were

recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheets of the Company
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Wholesale Direct Selling

Segment Segment

Lease Severance

Severance Costs Obligation CostIn thousands Total

BalanceatJanuaty3l2tjos 138 1151 1013 1389

Changes in estimate during fiscal 2009 1701 1701

Payments made in fiscal 2009

Balance at January 31 2009

138 865 100 1103
1987 1987

Changes in estimate during fiscal 2010 129 129

Payments made in fiscal 2010

BalanceatJanuaty3l2010

789 789
1327 1.327

Changes in estimate during fiscal 2011

Payments made in fiscal 2011

BalanceatJanuary3l2011

832

788

832

788
1371 1371

Note Investments

The Company considers all money market funds and debt instruments including certificates of

deposit and commercial paper purchased With an original maturity of three months or less to be

cash equivalents unless the assets are restricted The carrying value of cash and cash equivalents

approximates their fair value

The Companys investments as of January 31 2011 consisted of number of financial securities

including equity securities preferred stocks certificates of deposit and an investment in limited

liability company The Company accounts for its investments in equity instruments in

accordance with ASC 320 Investments Debt Equity Securities

The following table summarizes by major security type the amortized costs and fair value of the

Companys investments

January 3t 2010 January 3t 20tt

Net unrealized

Net unrealized gain gain tiuss in

In thousands Cust nasis Fair Value Quss in AOCI Cust nanin Fair Value AOCt

ieaeo 9424 576 ieaso 8700

6t03 6256 t53 4620 5t18 498

7417 7411 7009 7aM

Aunion Rate Securities

Equity securities

certificates of deposit

Total available for sole investments

Equity method investment in LLc

Total investments

23516 23093 423 16685 15883 498

979 393

24072 16276

lyThruuul ftursrepresuelu thu uuluul renaul rdueIle buns asururrud lulluruiugapurmuuuuL uu1mrnnrul ufthul uuuur TIe
equrlysrururlsru

uueuisrul5s uullruu fur piefeered uuun isullurerury 312011

The leers be the pruleerud uul rueu bra furevulures u1 Feberur3 1.2009 tIe dale thus they ueruemliueflud Sum lvdiu5luuvurlubie fur urIc

2lTheequrly eethud trunlaceps4 or uuul udluard by the Cueruys prupurtrueulu thaieuf muneuds mmrngs ue lum Thru muy rut buequel tu Ce iuvuarurmli frrr eerl.ul cube

Thu Cuuqruuy eeuurdrd uuteieurur uhege uf 150 mdhuu fur lIe hvulvrs ruuuths redal thuuiry 312011

Short-term investments held as of January 31 2010 and 2011 consist of $5.0 million of

certificates of deposit that have maturities greater than three months but less than twelve months

and an auction rate security valued at $8.7 million The certificates of deposits are recorded at

cdst and interest eamed on these is realized in Interest income in the Consolidated Statements of

Eamings Loss In conjunction with decision made prior to year end the ARS was sold in

February 2011 and is presented as short-term investments as of January 31 2011 in the

Consolidated Balance Sheets The Company determined that the decrease in value of its ARS was

other than temporary and therefore recorded charge of $1.3 million representing the difference

in the par value of the ARS of $10.0 million and its liquidated value of $8.7 million The charge

of $1.3 million was recorded in Foreign exchange and other in the Consolidated Statements of

Earnings Loss for the
year

ended January 31 2011

As of January 31 2010 and 2011 the Company held $6.3 million and $5.1 million of preferred

stock investments which are classified as long-term available for sale securities Unrealized gains
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and/or losses on these investments that are considered temporary are recorded in AOCI These

securities are valued based on quoted prices in inactive markets For the
year

ended January 31
2010 and 2011 the Company recorded an unrealized gain net of tax of $0.1 million and $0.3

million respectively in AOCI

The following table summarizes the proceeds and realized gains and losses on the sale of

available for sale investments recorded in Foreign exchange and other within the Consolidated

Statements of Earnings Loss Gains and losses are calculated using the specific identification

method

In thousands Year Ended Janu ary 31

Net proceeds

2010 2011

5238 1889

Realized gains losses 870 894

The Company holds an investment in limited liability company LLC obtained through its

ViSalus acquisition The LLC is accounted for under the equity method as the Company holds

minority interest in this company The Company recorded an impairment charge of $0.6 million

in fiscal 2011 reflecting downward revision of its current and long term forecasted revenue and

profits This impairment was recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Eamings Loss in

Foreign exchange and other As Blyth owns 43.6% share in ViSalus portion of this

impairment is attributable to noncontroiling interest and therefore the net impairment recorded to

Blyths Net earnings is $0.3 million The investment in this LLC involves related parties as

discussed in Note 16

Also included in long-term investments are certificates of deposit that are held as collateral for

the Companys outstanding standby letters of credit These investments are recorded at cost and

interest earned is recorded in Interest income in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings Loss

In addition to the investments noted above the Company holds mutual funds as part of deferred

compensation plan which are classified as available for sale As of January 31 2010 and 2011
the fair value of these securities was $1.0 million These securities are valued based on quoted

prices in an active market Unrealized gains and losses on these securities are recorded in AOCI
These mutual funds are included in Other assets in the Consolidated Balance Sheets

Note Inventories

The major components of Inventories are as follows

January 31 In thousands 2010 2011

Raw materials 8482 7840

Finished goods

Total

93721 100382

102.203 108.222

As of January 31 2010 and72Oll the inverftory valuation adjustments totaled $15.0 million and

$16.4 millionrespectively The Company recorded provisions for obsolete excess and

unmarketable inventory to Cost of goods sold in the Consolidated Statements of Earnings Loss
for fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 of $6.1 million $4.5 million and $9.2 million respectively
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Note Prepaid and Other

Prepaid and other consists of the following

January 31 In thousands 2010 2011

Income and other taxes 2269 1736

Catalogs 6319 7407

Promotions 3952 3013

Foreign exchange forward contracts 144 15

Asset available for sale 5865

Other

Total

11313 9547

23997 27583

Note Derivatives and Other Financial Instrnments

The Company uses foreign exchange forward contracts to hedge the impact of foreign currency

fluctuations on foreign denominated inventory purchases net assets of our foreign operations

intercompany payables and loans It does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for

trading purposes The Company has hedged the net assets of certain of its foreign operations

through foreign currency forward contracts The realized and unrealized gains/losses on these

hedges are recorded within AOCI until the investment is sold or disposed of As of January 31

2011 there were no outstanding net investment hedges The cumulative net after-tax gain related

to net investment hedges in AOCI as of January 31 2010 and January 31 2011 was $5.2 million

and $5.6 million respectively

The Company has designated its foreign currency forward contracts related to certain foreign

denominated loans and intercompany payables as fair value hedges The gains or losses on the

fair value hedges are recognized into earnings and generally offset the transaction gains or losses

in the foreign denominated loans that they are intended to hedge

The Company has designated forward exchange contracts on forecasted intercompany inventory

purchases and fliture purchase commitments as cash flow hedges and as long as the hedge remains

effective and the underlying transaction remains probable the effective portion of the changes in the

fair value of these contracts will be recorded in AOCI until eamings are affected by the variability

of the cash flow being hedged Upon payment of each commitment tle underlying forward

contract is closed and the corresponding gain or loss is transferred from AOCI and is realized in the

Consolidated Statements of Earnings Loss If hedging instrument is sold or terminated prior to

maturity gains and losses are deferred in AOCI until the hedged item is settled However if the

hedged item is probable of not occurring the resultant gain or loss on the terminated hedge is

recognized into eamings immediately The net after-tax loss included in accumulated AOCI at

January 31 2011 for cash flow hedges is $0.1 million and is expected to be transferred into earnings

within the next twelve months upon settlement of the underlying commitment

For financial statement presentation net cash flows from such hedges are classified in the

categories of the Consolidated Statement of C/ash Flows with the items being hedged Forward

contracts held with each bank are presehted \vithin the Consolidated Balance Sheets as net asset

or liability based on netting agreements with each bank and whether the forward contracts are in

net gain or loss position The foreign exchange contracts outstanding have maturity dates

through October 2011

The table below details the fair value and location of the Companys hedges in the Consolidated

Balance Sheets
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In thousands

January 12010 January 312011

repaid and Accrued Prepaid and Accrued

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments

Other Expenses Other Expenses

Foreign exchange forward contracts in an asset position 144 56 19 83

Foreign exchange forward contracts in liability position

Net derivatives at fair value

56 125 18 380

88 69 297

Gain and loss activity related to the Companys cash flow hedges for the year ended January 31
are as follows

Cash Flow Hedging Relationships

Amount of Gain tLoss Recognized in

AOCI on Derivative Effective Portion

Location of Gain tLnss Reclassified from

AOCt into Income tEffective Portion

Amoont of Gain tLoss Reclassified from AOCI
into Income Effective Portion

In thousands

Foreign exchange forward contracts

2010 2011

Cost of goods sold

2010 2011

$90 $3t0 $I4t0 $540

For the year ended January 31 2010 and 2011 the Company recorded gain of $0.7 million and

$0.4 million respectively to AOCI related to foreign exchange forward contracts accounted for

as Net investment hedges

For the fiscal year ended January 31 2010 and 2011 the Company recorded losses of $1.2 and

$0.7 million respectively related to foreign exchange forward contracts accounted for as Fair

Value hedges to Foreign exchange and other

Note Goodwill and Other Intangibles

Goodwill is subject to an assessment for impairment using two-step fair value-based test and as

such.other intangibles are also subject to impairment reviews which must be performed at least

annually or more frequently if events or circumstances indicate that goodwill or other indefinite-

lived intangibles might be impaired

The Company performs its annual assessment of impairment as of January 31st For goodwill

the first step is to identify heihet potential impairment exists This is done by comparing the

fair value of reporting unit to its carrying amount including goodwill Fair value for each of the

Companys reporting units is estimated utilizing combination of valuation techniques namely

the discounted cash flow methodology and the market multiple methodology The discounted

cash flow methodology assumes the fair value of an asset can be estimated by the economic

benefit or net cash flows the asset will generate over the life of the asset discounted to its present

value The discounting process uses rate of retum that accounts for both the time value of

money and the investment risk factors The market multiple methodology estimates fair value

based on what other participants in the market have recently paid for reasonably similar assets

Adjustments are made to compensate for differences between the reasonably similar assets and

the assets being valued If the fair value of th repohing unit exceeds the carrying value no

further analysis isnecessary If the carrying amount of the reporting unit exceeds its fair value

the second step is performed The second step compares the carrying amount of the goodwill to

the estimated fair value of the goodwill If fair value is less than the canying amount an

impairment loss is reported as reduction to the goodwill and charge to operating expense

In the second quarter of fiscal 2010 the ViSalus business within the Direct Selling segment
revised downward its revenues forecast for the current fiscal

year as result of lower demand for

its product reflecting lower consumer spending attributed to the domestic economic recession and
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higher than anticipated attrition rate in its distributor base These factors together have required

management to focus its efforts on stabilizing its distributor base and curtailing its international

expansion plans Accordingly management reduced its short-term and long-term forecasts in

response to the weakening demand for its products The impairment analysis performed indicated

that the goodwill in ViSalus was fully impaired as its fair value was less than its canying value

including goodwill Accordingly the Company recorded non-cash pre-tax goodwill impairment

charge of $13.2 million during the second quarter of fiscal 2010

The gross value of goodwill was $15.5 million in the Direct Selling segment As of January 31

2011 the carrying amount of the Companys goodwill within the Direct Selling segment was $2.3

million

The following table shows changes in goodwill for the fiscal years ended January 31 2010 and

2011

In thousands Direct Selling

BalanceasofJanuary3l2009 13988

ViSalus acquisition 1501

Impairment charges 13191

Balance as of January 312010 and 2011 2298

The Company uses the relief from royalty method to estimate the fair value for indefinite-lived

intangible assets The underlying concept of the relief from royalty method is that the inherent

economic value of intangibles is directly related to the timing of future cash flows associated with

the intangible asset Similar to the income approach or discounted cash flow methodology used to

determine the fair value of goodwill the fair value of indefinite-lived intangible assets is

estimated based on the present value of after-tax cash flows associated with the intangible asset

based on an applicable royalty rate The royalty rate is determined by using existing market

comparables for royalty agreements using an intellectual property data base The arms-length

agreements generally support rate that is percentage of direct sales This approach is based on

the premise that the free cash flow is more valid criterion for measuring value than book or

accounting profits

Other intangible assets include indefinite-lived trade names and trademarks and customer

relationships related to the Companys acquisition of Miles Kimhal Walter Drake and As We

Change which are reported in the Catalog and Intemet segment and other intangible assets of

ViSalus which is reported in the Direct Selling segment

In connection with the ViSalus goodwill impairment analysis performed for the second quarter of

fiscal 2010 the Company also analyzed and recorded additional impairment charges totaling $3.1

million for certain of the Companys trade names This impairment was the result of downward

revision of its revenue forecast lower consumer spending and higher than anticipated attrition

rate in its distributor base

During fiscal 2011 the Exposures brand under the Miles Kimball business within the CatalOg

Intemet segment experienced substantial declines in revenues when compared to its forecasts and

prior years The Company believes this shortfall in revenue was primarily attributable to

decreased consumer spending due to changes in the business environment and adverse economic

conditions As result of the impairment analysis performed the indefinite-lived trade name in

this brand was determined to be partially impaired as the fair value of this brand was less than its

carrying value Accordingly the Company recorded non-cash pre-tax impairment charge of

$0.3 million resulting in carrying value of$l.4 million
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The indefinite-lived trade names and trademarks were valued at $9.0 million and $8.6 million as

of the fiscal years ended January 31 2010 and 2011 respectively The Company does not

amortize the indefinite-lived trade names and trademarks but rather tests for impairment annually

as of January 31 and upon the occurrence of
triggering event

The gross value of all indefinite trade names and trade marks by segment was $28.1 million in the

Catalog Intemet segment and $4.2 million in the Direct Selling segment The
gross

value of all

customer relationships by segment was $15.4 million in the Catalog Intemet segment and $0.3

million in the Direct Selling segment

Other intangible assets include the following
Direct Selling Segment Catalog Internet Segmeal Total

Indefinite-lived lodefinile-lived

trade names and Customer trade names and Caseamer

erademarks relationships trademarks relalisaships
__________________ _________

4200 271 7850 419

64 1293
11801 2071

lo thoosaeds

Other tolaogihloeatioooor5 31 2009

Amortizaooo

Impainseets

Other mtaogiblcs o1Jaosa 200

Amorszoooo

lospairsainls

Other mtongibles ol Jaoaory 31 2011

1100 7850 3226

1084

300 300

1100 7550 2142 8650 2142

Amortization expense is recorded on an accelerated basis over the estimated lives of the customer

lists ranging from to 12 years Amortization expense was $1.4 million in fiscal 2010 and $1.1

million in fiscal 2011 Estimated amortization expense for the next five fiscal years beginning

with fiscal 2012 is as follows $0.7 million $0.6 million $0.6 million $0.2 million and an

insignificant amount to be amortized in fiscal 2016 The weighted average remaining life of the

Companys customer lists was 4.6 years at January 31 2011

Note 10 Fair Value Measurements

The fair-value hierarchy established in ASC 820 prioritizes the inputs used in valuation

techniques into three levels as follows

Level-I Observable inputs quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities

Level-2 Observable inputs other than the quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and

liabilities such as quoted prices for similar instruments quoted prices for identical or similar

instruments in inactive markets or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by

observable market data

Level-3 Unobservable inputs includes amounts derived from valuation models where one or

more significant inputs are unobservable and require the Company to develop relevant

assumptions

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Recurring Basis

The following table summarizes the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on

recurring basis as of the measurement date January 31 2011 and the basis for that measurement

by level within the fair value hierarchy

Indefinite-lived

trade names and

trademarks

12OO

3.100

8950

Caseomer

relationships

4795

1357

___________
207

___________
3226

1084
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Quoted prices in

active markets for Significant other Significant

Balance as of identical assets observable inputs unobservable

January 312011 Level Level inputs Level 31In thousands

Financial assets

Certificates of deposit 2065 2065

Equity Securities 13818 5118 8700

Deferred compensation pian assets 978 978

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Total

Financial liabilities

102 102

16963 978 7285 8700

Foreign exchange forward contracts 398 398

in February 2011 the Company sold its only mmaining Auction Rate Security for $87 million TheCompony recorded charge ofSl million for the tscol
yenr

ended

Janunry 2011 mprnsnntrng the dffaence in its par and liquidated
value

2Thnm is an offsettrngltability forthe obligation torts nmployens in Otlterltabrlttrns

The table below summarizes the changes in the fair value of Level-3 financial asset representing

the Companys only remaining Auction Rate Security for the twelve month period ended January

312011

Significant unobservable inputs

Levelin thousands

Fair value February 2010 9424

Reversal of unrealized loss 576

Realized loss

FairvalueJanuary3l2011

1300

8700

In Febmnty 2011 the Company sold its only remaining Auction Rate 5ecnrity thr $8.7 million The Company rmordnl

charge of$ 1.3 million thr the fiscal your ntded Janonty 2011 roptnsnnltng the dtffernocn between Is par and liquidated value

The Company values its investments in equity securities within the deferred compensation plan

using level inputs by obtaining quoted prices in active markets The deferred compensation

plan assets consist of shares of mutual funds for which there are quoted prices in an active

market The Company also enters into both cash flow and fair value hedges by purchasing

forward contracts These contracts are valued using level inputs primarily observable forward

foreign exchange rates The Company values Certain preferred stock investments using

information classified as level This data consists of quoted prices of identical instruments in an

inactive market and third party bid offers The certificates of deposit have been valued using

information classified as level as these are not traded on the open market and are held

unsecured by single counterparty The equity securities consist of preferred stock portfolio

and one Auction Rate Security that take into consideration many factors including the credit

quality of both the issuer and its guarantor and value of the collateral all of which aids in the

determination of the default risk credit risk and downgrade risk Additionally prior to the

Companys determination that the impairment of its ARS was other than temporary the Company

utilized input from valuation specialists in perfonning discounted cash flow and market analyses

Since there is not an active observable market currently for these securities they have been

classified as level input

The carrying values of cash and cash equivalents trade and other receivables and trade pay ables

are considered to be representative of their respective fair values
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Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on Nonrecurring Basis

The Company is required on non-recurring basis to adjust the canying value or provide

valuation allowances for certain assets using fair value measurements in accordance with ASC
820 The Companys assets and liabilities measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis include

property plant and equipment goodwill intangibles and other assets These assets are not

measured at fair value on recurring basis however they are subject to fair value adjustments in

certain circumstances such as when there is evidence that impairment may exist

The following tables summarizes the assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis as of

the measurement date January 31 2010 and 2011 respectively by level within the fair value

hierarchy and identifies the losses recorded during the fiscal year

Quoted prices in

active markets for Significant other

identical assets ohservahle inputs

Level Level

Significant

unolsservahle

inputs Level

2298

In thoossnds

Goodwill

Indefisile-lived teade names and trsdensasks 8950 8950 3100

Csstomcr Relstionships 3226 3226 207

Assets held for sale 6492 6492 376

16874

In thousands

Balanceasof

January 31 2011

Quoted prices in

active markets for

identicalassets

Level

Significantother

observableinputs

Level

Significant

unobservable

inputs Level

Total

impairment

losses

Goodwill 2298 2298

Indefinite-lived intangibles 8650 8650 300

Customer Relationships 2142 2142

Property plant equipment

Assets held for sale

101501

5865

101501

5865

865

1165

Incladed is pre1oidand other as afJanaar3 31 2011 See Note

Goodwill and indefinite-lived intangibles are subject to impairment testing on an annual basis or

sooner if circumstances indicate condition of impairment may exist The valuation uses

assumptions such as interest and discount rates growth projections and other assumptions of

future business conditions These valuation methods require significant degree of management

judgment conceming the use of internal and external data In the event these methods indicate

that fair value is less than the carrying value the asset is recorded at fair value as determined by

the valuation models As such the Company classifies goodwill and other intangibles subjected

to nonrecurring fair value adjustments as level See Note for further details on the asset

impairment review performed during the fourth quarter of fiscal 2011

The fair value of the Companys long-lived assets primarily Property plant and equipment and

assets held for sale is reviewed whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that

carrying amount of long-lived assets rnaynot be recoverable Management determines whether

there has been an impairment on long-lived assets held for use in the business by comparing

anticipated undiscounted future cash flow from the use and eventual disposition of the asset or

asset group to the carrying value of the asset The amount of any resulting impairment is

calculated by comparing the canying value to the fair value Long-lived assets that meet the

definition of held for sale are valued at the lower of carrying amount or net realizable value

Assets or asset groups are determined at the lowest level possible for which identifiable cash

flows are largely independent of the cash flows of other assets and liabilities For assets whose

Balance as of

January 312010

2298

Total

impairment

losses

13191
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aggregate undiscounted cash flows are less than its carrying value the assets are considered

potentially impaired and actual impairments if any would be determined to the extent the assets

carrying value exceeds its aggregate fair values See Note for further details of an impairment

charge related to Boca Java long-lived assets in fiscal 2011

The valuation of these assets uses significant amount of managements judgment and relies

heavily on the information provided by third parties The current local real estate market regional

comparatives estimated concessions and transaction costs are all considered when determining

the fair value of these assets Due to the nature of this information and the assumptions made by

management the Company has classified the inputs used in valuing these assets as level

Note 11 Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses consist of the following

January 31 In thousands 2010 2011

Compensation and benefits 20269 20815

Deferred revenue 13645 14190

Promotional 8235 7435

Interest payable 1618 2.030

Taxes other than income 2882 3270

Self-insurance reserves 2081 1816

Postage and freight 2446 1763

Other

Total

9719 9783

60895 61102

Note 12 Long-Term Debt

Longterm debt consists of the following

January 31 In thousands 2010 2011

5.50% Senior Notes 99918 99940

Other 10626 11045

110544 110985

Less current maturities 582 1330
109962 109655

In May 1999 the Company filed shelf registration statement for issuance of up to $250.0

million in debt securities with the Securities and Exchange Commission On September 24

1999 the Company issued $150.0 million of 7.90% Senior Notes due October 2009 at

disdount of approximately $1.4 million which was amortized over the life of the notes During

the first nine months of fiscal 2010 the Company repurchased $12.6 million of these notes

settling the debt early and made principal payments of $24.7 million upon maturity

On October 20 2Q03 the Company issued $100.0 million 5.50% Senior Notes due on November

2013 at discount of approximately $0.2 million which is being amortized over the life of the

notes Such notes contain among other provisions restrictions on liens on principal property or

stock issued to collateralize debt As of January 31 2011 the Company was in compliance with

such provisions Interest is payable semi-annually in arrears on May and November The

notes may be redeemed in whole or in part at any time at specified redemption price The

proceeds of the debt issuances were used for general corporate purposes
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As of January 31 2010 and 2011 Miles Kimball had approximately $7.7 million and $7.2 million

respectively of long-term debt outstanding under real estate mortgage note payable which

matures June 2020 Under the terms of the note payments of principal and interest are required

monthly at fixed interest rate of 7.89%

As of January 31 2010 and 2011 Midwest-CBK had $0.1 million of long-term debt outstanding

under an Industrial Revenue Bond IRB which matures on January 2025 The bond is

backed by an irrevocable letter of credit issued by bank and is collateralized by certain of

Midwest-CBK assets The amount outstanding under the IRB bears interest at short-term

floating rates which on weighted average was 0.6% at January 31 2011 Interest payments are

required monthly under the terms of the bond

As of January 31 2011 ViSalus had two long-term loans totaling $3.2 million outstanding

related to notes payable to RAM and ViSalus three founders Under the terms of the notes

interest is accrued at fixed annual interest rate of 10.0% in addition to the $0.6 million interest

cost as result of ViSalus achieving certain performance criteria see Note for additiopal

information

Maturities under debt obligations for the fiscal years ending January 31 are as follows In thousands

2012 1330

2013 3422

2014 100629

2015 712

2016 73
Thereafter 4154

110985

The Companys debt is recorded at its amortized cost basis The estimated fair value of the

Companys $110.5 million and $111.0 million total long-term debt including current portion at

January 31 2010 and 2011 was approximately $95.6 million and $110.2 million respectively

The fair value of the liability is determined using the fair value of its notes when traded as an

asset in an inactive market and is based on current interest rates relative credit risk and time to

maturity- Due to the nature of the information used the Company considers these to be level

measurements

As of January 31 2011 the Company had total of $2.0 million available under an uncommitted

bank facility to be used for letters of credit The issuance of letters of credit under this facility will

be available until January 31 2012 As of January 31 2011 no amount was outstanding under

this facility

As of January 31 2011 the Company had $2.1 million in standby letters of credit outstanding

thai are collateralized with certificate of deposit

Note 13 Employee Benefit Plans

The Company has defined contribution employee benefit plans in both the United States and

certain of its foreign locations covering substantially all eligible non-union employees

Contributions to all such plans are principally at the Companys discretion Total expense related

to all defined contribution plans in the United States for the fiscal years ended January 31 2009

2010 and 2011 was $4.5 million $3.4 million and $3.3 million respectively The continued

decrease in expense compared to prior periods is primarily due to the reductions in personnel and

profit sharing contributions made during the year
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Certain of the Companys non-U.S subsidiaries provide pension benefits to employees or

participate in government sponsored programs The cost of these plans or government sponsored

programs was $1.7 million $2.0 million and $1.8 million in fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011

respectively Most employees outside the United States are covered by government sponsored

and administered programs Other contributions to government-mandated programs are not

expected to be significant

The Company entered into an employment agreement with its Chairman and Chief Executive

Officer Robert Goergen dated as of August 2000 This contract has been amended and

restated from time to time to extend his term of employment and provide other benefits Benefits

pursuant to the agreement have been fUnded by purchased annuity contract

During fiscal 2009 the Company recognized pre-tax $1.9 million unrealized gain in the

Consolidated Statement of Eamings Loss due to the termination of Miles Kimball Company

Retirement Plan in 2007

Note 14 Commitments and Contingencies

In August 2008 state department of revenue proposed to assess additional corporate income

taxes on the Company for fiscal years 2002 2003 and 2004 in the amount of $34.9 million

including interest and penalties The state department of revenue has subsequently reduced this

amount to $16.9 million including interest In February 2011 the state department of revenue

issued notice of intent to assess additional corporate income taxes for fiscal years 2005 2006

and 2007 in the amount of $14.0 million including interest and penalties The Company intends

to vigorously protest all of these assessments As of January 31 2011 the Company has

reserve for these matters that it believes is adequate based on existing facts and circumstances

The ultimate resolution of these matters could exceed the Companys recorded reserve in the

event of an unfavorable outcome It is reasonably possible that losses in excess of the Companys
recorded reserve could be incurred however the Company cannot estimate such loss at this

time

The Company has contingent liabilities that have arisen in the ordinary course of its business

including pending litigation The Company believes the outcome of these matters and the state

department of revenue matter discussed above will not have material adverse affect on its

consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

The Company utilizes operating and capital leases for portion of its facilities and equipment

Generally the leases provide that the Company pay real estate taxes maintenance insurance and

other occupancy expenses applicable to leased premises Certain leases provide for renewal for

various periods at stipulated rates

The minimum fhture rental commitments under operating and capital leases are as follows In thousands

For the fiscal years ending January 31
2012 15142

2013

2014

10905

6199

2015 4801

2016 3049

2017 and thereafter

Total minimum payments required

8035

48131

Rent expense for the years ended January 31 2009 2010 and 2011 was $17.2 million $16.3

million and $15.5 million respectively
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Pursuant to the employment agreement identified above upon the death of both Mr Goergen and

his spouse the Company will upon the demand of the estate of either Mr Goergen or his spouse

buy back from such estate up to 1875000 shares of Company Common Stock within 90 days of

such demand at the fair market value thereof as defined in the employment agreement or

register the public offer and sale by such estate of up to 1875000 shares of Common Stock In

connection with the employment agreement the Company and Mr Goergen entered into

registration rights agreement relating to the registration of up to 1875000 shares of Common

Stock as described above in the event that the Company chooses not to purchase such shares upon

the death of both Mr Goergeu and his spouse There is no specified effective date or stock price

requirement in the agreements and the Companys only obligation is to use its best efforts to have

the registration become effective The Company will not be obligated to purchase or register

such shares notwithstanding the death of both Mr Goergen and his spouse if the survivors

estate or his or her beneficiaries as the case may be can then sell all of the shares of the

common stock owned by them without registration At January 31 2011 the Company has

recorded liability of approximately $0.2 million related to the estimated future costs to register

the securities

The Company has contingent liabilities that have arisen in the ordinary course of its business

including pending litigation The Company believes the outcome of these matters will not have

material adverse effect on its consolidated financial position results of operations or cash flows

Note 15 Income Taxes

Earnings loss from operations before income taxes and minority interest

Year ended January 31 In thousands 2009 2010 2011

United States 81843 43387 28689

Foreign 70318 65461 67095

11525 22074 38406

Income tax expense attributable to continuing operations consists of the following

Year ended January31 Inthousands 2009 2010 2011

Current income tax expense

Federal 40 10550 4824

State 2418 436 563

Foreign 12698 9044 9608

15076 1070 13869

Deferred income tax expense benefit

Fedeml 10277 7253 360
State 757 64 240

Foreign 202 598 131

11236 6719 251

3840 5649 13618

Significant components of the Companys deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows
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January 31 In thousands 2010 2011

Deferred tax assets

Amortization 17200 14418

Accrued expenses and other 7983 3624

Allowance for doubtful receivables 1233

Employee benefit plans 3093

Inventory reserves 3788

Net opemiing loss and other tax credit carryforwards 25071

Capital loss carryforward

Uncerlain tax positions

Other reserves

Valuation allowance

417

2831

3709

27095

12154

4042

2394

26682

44002

6341 7790
28347 21932

The Companys valuation allowance relates to certain U.S and non-U.S tax loss carryforwards

state deferred tax assets and U.S capital loss carryforward for which the Company believes

due to various limitations in these foreign jurisdictions related to the tax loss carryforwards and

due to limitations imposed by U.S federal and state tax regulations it is more likely than not that

such benefits will not be realized As of January 31 2011 the Company had net operating loss

carryforwards which consisted of approximately $12.1 million of U.S federal net operating

losses that will expire on January 31 2023 and 2026 $101.5 million of U.S state net operating

losses that will begin to expire in 2013 and foreign net operating losses of $17.6 million which

will begin to expire in 2012 As of January 31 2010 the Company had $32.7 million U.S

capital loss carryforward of which the majority will expire on January 31 2012 Finally the

Company has state deferred tax assets of $1.0 million that due to the fact that the businesses that

these assets relate to have history of net operating losses it is more likely than not that benefit

for these assets will not be recognized

As of January 31 2011 the Company determined that $236.2 million of undistributed foreign

eamings were not reinvested indefinitely by its non-U.S subsidiaries An accumulated deferred

tax liability has been recorded against these undistributed eamings of $21.9 million decrease of

$6.4 million over the prior year Of the current year amount $3.3 million was recorded as an

expense for undistributed eamings to the Companys Net eamings in the current period

As of January 31 2011 undistributed eamings of foreign subsidiaries considered permanently

reinvested for which deferred income taxes have not been provided were approximately $90.9

million Determining the tax liability that would arise if these earnings were remitted is not

practicable

reconciliation of the provision for income taxes to the amount computed at the federal statutory

rate is as follows

Deferred tax liabilities

Prepaids

Undistributed foreign eamings

Depreciation and amortization

Net deferred tax asset

11104

4063

2122

21036

54621

10733

45421

9200

10683

40405

3597
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Yearendedianuary3l Inthousands 2009 2010 2011

Tax atstatutoiy rate 3918 7726 13442

Tax effect of

U.S state income taxes net of federal benefit 1383 348 112
Tax exempt interest 200 23 33
Permanent differences 283 220 45
Non-consolidated losses earnings 907 35
Valuation allowance on defened tax assets 801

Valuation allowance movement on capital loss carryforward 931 263 313

Change in reserve for tax contingencies 3384 8745 591

Non-deductible goodwill impairment 6448 4617

Foreign dividend and subpart income 6832 8870 16775

Tax benefit on undistributed foreign earnings 4079 6819 3259

Foreign tax rate differential 12156 14470 14025
Other 601 83

3840 5649 13618

The Company adopted the provisions for recognizing and measuring uncertain tax positions taken

or expected to be taken in tax return that affect amounts reported in the financial statements as

required by ASC 740 As result of the implementation of this guidance the Company

recognized $6.1 million increase in the liability for unrecognized tax benefits that may not be

realized and an asset of $3.3 million These amounts accounted for net $2.8 million reduction to

the Companys February 2007 Retained earnings balance The following is reconciliation of

the total amounts of unrecognized tax benefits excluding interest and penalties during the year

ended January 31 2011

In thousands

Balance as of February 2010 12271

Gross increases tax positions prior periods

Gross decreases tax positions prior periods 11
Gross increases tax positions current period 247

Gross decreases tax positions current period 115
Decreases settlements with taxing authorities 143
Reductions lapse of statute of limitations 38
BalanceasofJanuary3l2011 12211

As of January 31 2011 the Company had $12.2 million of gross unrecognized tax benefits

excluding interest and penalties This amount represents the portion that if recognized would

impact the effective tax rate The Company recognizes interest and penalties related to

unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense As of January 31 2011 the Company had $6.9

mjlIion accrued for the payment of interest and penalties Penalties and interest in the amount of

$0.6 million adversely impacted the current year tax rate and favorably impacted the prior year

tax rate by $2.7 million As of January 2010 the Company had $6.6 million accrued for the

payment of interest and penalties

Due to the various jurisdictions in which the Company files tax returns and the uncertainty

regarding the timing of the settlement of tax audits it is possible that there could be other

significant changes in the amount of unrecognized tax benefits in fiscal 2012 but the amount

cannot be estimated

The Company files income tax returns in the U.S federaljurisdiction various state and local

jurisdictions and many foreign jurisdictions The number of years with open tax audits varies
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depending on the tax jurisdiction The Companys major taxing jurisdictions include the United

States including the state jurisdictions of Connecticut Illinois and Massachusetts Canada

Germany and Switzerland In the United States the Company is currently open to examination

by the Internal Revenue Service for fiscal years 2009 and 2010 The Company is currently under

audit in number of states for fiscal
years

2002 through 2005 and is open to examination for

fiscal years 2005 through 2010 Additionally in Canada and Germany the Company is open to

examination for fiscal years 2007 through 2010 In Switzerland the Company is open to

examination for fiscal 2009 and 2010

In August 2008 state department of revenue proposed to assess additional corporate income

taxes on the Company for fiscal years 2002 2003 and 2004 in the amount of $34.9 million

including interest and penalties The state department of revenue has subsequently reduced this

amount to $16.9 million including interest In February 2011 the state department of revenue

issued notice of intent to assess additional corporate income taxes for fiscal years 2005 2006

and 2007 in the amount of $14.0 million including interest and penalties The Company intends

to vigorously protest all of these assessments As of January 31 2011 the Company established

reserve for this matter which it believes is adequate based on existing facts and

circumstances The ultimate resolution of these matters could exceed the Companys.recorded

reserve in the event of an unfavorable outcome however the Company cannot estimate such

loss at this time

Note 16 Related Party Transactions

As discussed in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements the acquisition of ViSalus by

Blyth in October 2008 involved related parties RAM owns significant noncontrolling interest in

ViSalus Robert Goergen Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of the

Company Robert Goergen Jr Vice President of the Company and President of the Multi-

Channel Group and Todd Goergen son of Robert Goergen and Pamela Goergen who is

also director of the Company and brother of Robert Goergen Jr own directly or

indirectly substantially all of the interests in RAM Todd Goergen was member of the Board

of Managers of ViSalus at the time of acquisition Mr Goergen the Companys chairman and

chief executive officer beneficially owns approximately 33.4% of the Companys outstanding

common stock and together with members of his family owns substantially all of RAM

On February 2010 ViSalus received financing commitment from the founders and RAM for

up to $1.2 million to fund its operations for calendar
year 2010 $0.6 million of which has been

borrowed as of January 31 2011 The loan is due on February 28 2011 and interest accrues at

10%
per annum payable quarterly in arrears In addition to the 10% interest the loan requires

ViSalus to pay further lump-sum interest payment at loan maturity of $0.6 million The loan is

secured by ViSalus assets and has preference over existing loans from the founders RAM and the

Company

As of January 31 2011 ViSalus had outstanding notes payable excluding interest to RAM and

the founders of $3.2 million in addition to $3.3 million due to Blyth

On February 28 2011 ViSalus repaid $0.6 million of the loan due to founders and RAM and also

the lump-sum interest payment of $0.6 million due at maturity on the loan In March 2011
ViSalus paid the loan balance of $3 .3 million including interest accrued due to Blyth

As discussed in Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements the investment in the LLC

involves related parties RAM holds an approximately 18% interest in the LLC In addition to this

interest they also have significant influence on the management of the LLC and representation on

its board of managers
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Note 17 Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 30 2009 the Companys common stock and related equity based instruments

were subject to -for-4 reverse stock split All historical stock-based compensation disclosures

have been adjusted accordingly

Summary of Plans

As of January 31 2011 the Company had one active stock-based compensation plan the

Amended and Restated 2003 Omnibus Incentive Plan 2003 Plan available to grant friture

awards In addition the Company maintains two inactive stock-based compensation plans the

Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan and the Amended and Restated 1994

Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors under which vested and unexercised options

remain outstanding There were 1020449 shares authorized for grant under these plans as of

January 31 2011 and there were approximately 821588 shares available for grant under these

plans The Companys policy is to issue new shares of common stock for all stock options

exercised and restricted stock grants

The Board of Directors and the stockholders of the Company have approved the adoption and

subsequent amendments of the 2003 Plan The 2003 Plan provides for grants of incentive and

nonqualified stock options stock appreciation rights restricted stock restricted stock units

performance shares performance units dividend equivalents and other stock unit awards to

officers and employees The 2003 Plan also provides for grants of nonqualified stock options to

directors of the Company who are not and who have not been during the immediately preceding

12-month period officers or employees of the Company or any of its subsidiaries Restricted

stock and restricted stock units RSU5 are granted to certain employees to incent performance

and retention RSUs issued under these plans provide that shares awarded may not be sold or

otherwise transferred until restrictions have lapsed The release of RSUs on each of the vesting

dates is contingent upon continued active employment by the employee until the vesting dates

total of 41060 RSUs were granted during fiscal 2011

In accordance with U.S GAAP the Company measures and recognizes compensation expense

for all share-based payment awards made to employees and directors including employee stock

options restricted stock and RSUs based on esiimated fair values

Stock-based compensation expense recognized during the period is based on the value of the

portion of stock-based payment awards that is ultimately expected to vest during the period

Stock-based compensation expense recognized in the Companys Consolidated Statements of

Eamings Loss for the fiscal
years

ended January 31 2009 2010 and 2011 includes

compensation expense for restricted stock RSUs and stock-based awards granted subsequent to

January 31 2006 based on the grant date fair value estimated in accordance with the provisions of

ASC 718 CompensationStock Compensation ASC 718 The Company recognizes these

compensation costs net of forfeiture rate for only those awards expected to vest on straight

line basis over the requisite service period of the award which is over periods of years for stock

options to years for employee restricted stock and RSUs and to years for non-employee

restricted stock and RSUs Forfeitures are- estimated at the time of grant and revised if necessary

in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures differ from those estimates
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Transactions related to restricted stock and RSUs are summarized as follows

Shares

Nonvested restricted stock and RSUs at January31 2009 75119 $89.51

Granted 83089 32.64

Vested 48653 88.14

Forfeited

Nonvested restricted stock and RSUs at January 2010

83 17 67.47

101238 $45.3 $2844

Granted 41060 46.98

Vested 29838 66.77

Forfeited

Nonvested restricted stock and RSIJs at January 2011

Total restricted stock and RSUs at January 31 2011

11415 36.54

101045 $40.64 $3397

137036 $52.64 $4607

Compensation expense related to restricted stock and RSUs for fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 was

approximately $1.8 million $2.7 million and $2.0 million respectively The total recognized tax

benefit for fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 was approximately $0.7 million $0.9 million and $0.7

million respectively The total intrinsic value of restricted stock and RSUs vested during fiscal

2010 and 2011 was $0.Q million and $1.2 million respectively The weighted average grant date

fair value of restricted stock and RSUs granted during fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 was

approximately $80 $33 and $47 per share respectively The average grant date fair value of

restricted stock and RSUs vested during fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011 was approximately $105 $88

and $67 per share respectively

As of January 31 2011 there was $1.1 million of unearned compensation expense related to non-

vested restricted stock and RSU awards This cost is expected to be recognized over weighted

average period of 1.4 years As of January 31 2011 101045 restricted stock awards with

weighted average grant date fair value of $40.64 are unvested The total unrecognized stock-

based compensation cost to be recognized in future periods as of January 31 2011 does not

consider the effect of stock-based awards that may be issued in subsequent periods

Transactions involving stock options are summarized as follows

Outstanding at January 312009

Options expired

Weighted

Average

Option Shares Exercise Price

79425 107.10

17300 104.99

62125

14525
47.600

3.30

Outstanding and exercisable at January 31 2010 10768 2.42

Options expired

OutStanding and exercisable at January 31 2011

102.86

109 16 1.71

At January 31 2010 and 2011 options to purchase 62125 and 47600 shares respectively were

vested and exercisable

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the difference between the Companys

closing stock price on the last trading day of fiscal 2011 and the exercise price multiplied by the

number of in-the-money options that would have been received by the option holders had all

option holders exercised their options on January 31 2011 Intrinsic value will change in future

periods based on the fair market value of the Companys stock and the number of shares

outstanding There were no grants or exercises during fiscal 2009 2010 and 2011

Weighted Average

Grant Date Fair

Value

Aggregate

Intrinsic Value

In thousands

Weighted Average

Remaining

Contractual Life

Aggregate Intrinsic

value
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The Company used the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to determine fair value for stock

option grants The Companys determination of fair value of stock-based payment awards on the

date of grant using an option-pricing model is affected by the Companys stock price as well as

assumptions regarding number of highly complex and subjective variable These variables

include but are not limited to the Companys expected stock price volatility over the term of the

awards and actual and projected employee stock option exercise behaviors

Note 18 Earnings Per Share

Effective January 30 2009 the Companys common stock and related equity-based instruments

were adjusted in 1-for-4 reverse stock split In accordance with ASC 260 Eamings per Share

ASC 260 all historical eamings per share amounts have been adjusted accordingly

Vested restricted stock units issued under the Companys stock-based compensation plans

participate in cash equivalent of the dividends paid to common shareholders and are not

considered contingently issuable shares Accordingly these RSUs are included in the calculation

of basic and diluted earnings per share as common stock equivalents RSUs that have not vested

and are subject to risk of forfeiture are included in the calculation of diluted eamings per share

The components of basic and diluted eamings per share are as follows

YearendedJanuary3l Inihousands 2009 2010 2011

Net earnings loss sttributableto Blyth Inc

Weighted average number outstanding

15480 17694 25556

Common shares S961 5559 8424

Vested restricted stock units

Weighted average number of common shams outstanding

10 23 38

Basic 8971 8912 8462

Dilutive effect of non-vested restricted shares units

Weighted average number of common shams outstanding

22 46

Diluted

Basic net earnings loss attributable per common share

8971 8934 8508

.73 1.99 3.02

Diluted net earnings loss attributable
per common share 1.73 1.98 3.00

As of January 31 2009 2010 and 2011 options to purchase 79425 62125 and 47600 shares of

common stock respectively are not included in the computation of diluted earnings per share

because the effect would be antidilutive

In accordance with ASC 260 diluted eamings per share for the year ended January 31 2009 have

been computed in the same matmer as basic eamings per
share due to the net loss from

operations

Note 19 Treasury and Common Stock

Treasury Stock

In thousands except shares Shares Amount

Balance at January 312008

Treasury stock purchases

Balance at January 31 2009

3639338 387885

202886 11093

3842224 398978

Treasury stock purchases 120000 3981

Treasury stock withheld in connection with long-term incentive plan

Balance at January 312010

9888 370

3972112 403329

Treasury stock purchases 582032 20557

Treasury stock withheld in connection with long-term incentive plan

Balance at January 312011

6870 324

4561014 424210
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Common Stock

In thousands except shares

Changes in Common Stock were

BalanceatJanuary3l2008

Shares Amount

12730615 254

Common stock issued in connection with long-term incentive plan

Balance at Januaiy 31 2009

Common stock issued in connection with long-term incentive plan

Balance at January 31 2010

Common stock issued in connection with long-term incentive plan

Balanceatianuary3l20t1

2594

12733209

32710

255

12765919

25596

255

12791515 256

Stock Repurchase Plan

For the year ended January 31 2010 and 2011 the Company has purchased 120000 and 582032

shares on the open market for cost of $4.0 million and $20.6 million respectively bringing the

cumulative total purchased shares to 3317602 and total cost of approximately $249.4 million

total of 1182398 shares remain authorized for purchase under the existing plan The acquired

shares are held as common stock in treasury at cost

Note 20 Segment Information

The Companys financial resuits are reported in three segments the Direct Seliing segment the

Catalog Internet segment and the Wholesale segment These reportable segments are based on

similarities in distribution channels customers and management oversight

Within the Direct Selling segment the Company designs manufactures or sources markets and

distributes an extensive line of products including scented candles candle-related accessories and

other fragranced products under the PartyLite brand PartyLite also offers gourmet foods under

the Two Sisters Gourmet by PartyLite brand name The Company also operates ViSalus

Sciences Direct Selling business which is focused on selling nutritional supplements and

weight management products Products in this segment are sold in North America through

networks of independent sales consultants PartyLite brand products are also sold in Europe and

Australia

Within the Catalog Internet segment the Company designs sources and markets broad
range

of household convenience items premium photo albums frames holiday cards personalized

gifts and kitchen accessories These products are sold directly to the consumer under the As We

Change Easy Comforts Exposures Home Marketplace Miles Kimball and Walter Drake

brands These products are sold in North America

Within the Wholesale segment the Company designs manufactures or sources markets and

distributes an extensive line of home fragrance products candle-related accessories seasonal

decorations such as ornaments and trim and home decor products such as picture frames lamps

and textiles Products in this segment are sold primarily in North America to retailers in the

premium specialty and mass channels under the CBK Colonial Candle of Cape Cod Colonial

at HOME and Seasons of Cannon Falls brands In addition chafing fuel and tabletop lighting

products and accessories fof the away froth home or foodservice trade are sold through this

segment under the Ambria HandyFuel and Sterno brands

Operating profit in all segments represent net sales less operating expenses directly related to the

business segments and corporate expenses allocated to the business segments Other income

expense includes interest expense interest income and equity in earnings of investees which

are not allocated to the business segments Identifiable assets for each segment consist of assets

used directly in its operations and intangible assets if any resulting from the purchase of
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businesses Unallocated Corporate within the identifiable assets include corporate cash and cash

equivalents short-term investments prepaid income tax corporate fixed assets deferred bond

costs deferred income taxes and other long-term investments and assets which are not allocated

to the business segments

See Note 22 for more information on the Companys disposal and exit of the gourmet coffee and

tea business Boca Java in February 2011 and Midwest-CBK business in April 2011

The geographic area data includes net trade sales based on product shipment destination and long

lived assets which consist of fixed assets and other long-term assets based on physical location
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Operating Segment Information

Year asded January 31 In thousands

21JU9

2010 2011

Net Sales

Direct Selling 664.489 635194 578820

Multi-channel Group

Catalog Internet 190059 166044 159895

Wholesale4t 196245 156839 162212

Subtotal Multi-channel Group 386.304 322883 322.107

Total 1050793 958077 900.927

Earnings

Direct Selling 74381 43778 49718

Multi-channel Group

Catalog Internet 59118 4781 278
Wholesale 11235 9014 2833

Subtotal Multi-channel Group 70.353 13.795 3.111

Operating profit 4028 29983 46607

Other income expense 15553 7909 8201
Earnings before income taxes and minority interest 11525 22074 38406

Identifiable Assets

Direct Selling 317868 205615 235618

Multi-channel Group

Catalog Internet 66341 58040 71616

Wholesale 103163 81928 51567

Subtotal Multi-channel Group 169504 139968 123183

Unallocated Corporate 86.731 177410 14264

Total 574103 522993 501765

Capital Expendiwres

Direct Selling 3287 3999 6584

Multi-channel Group

Catalog Internet 1624 305 688

Wholesale14 2876 1062 450

Subtotal Multi-channel Group 4500 1367 1138

Unallocated Corporato 386 18 496

Total 8173 5384 8218

Depreciation and Amortization

Direct Selling 9961 9263 7369

Multi-channel Group

Catalog Internet 4232 4019 3638

Wholesale 3875 2921 2271

Subtotal Multi-channel Group 8107 6940 5909

UnallocatedCorpoiato 560 389 419

Total 18628 16592 13697

GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
Net Sales

United States 624956 528474 495600

International 425837 429 603 405327

Total 1050793 958077 900927

Long Lived Assets31

United States 84328 72852 69011

International 36026 35.135 32490

Total 120354 107987 101501

.Fiscal 2009 and 2011 earnings within the Catalog Internet segment include non-cash pre-tax goodwill and

other intangibles impairment charges of $48.8 million and $0.3 million respectively Fiscal 2010 earnings include

non-cash pre-tax goodwill and other intangible impairment charges of$16.5 million within the Direct Selling

segment See Note to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Capital expenditures are presented net of disposals-and.transfers The unallocated corporate balance is net of

transfers to other divisions

$23.1 million of the International long-lived assets as of January 31 2011 were in the Netherlands

Refer to Note 22 to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the definitive agreement to sell all of the net assets

of the Midwest-CBK business
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Note 21 Selected Quarterly Financial Data Unaudited

summary of selected quarterly information for the years ended January 31 is as follows

2010 Quarter Ended

In thousandsexcept per share data

April30 July31 October31 January31

Netsales 214724 199354 221578 332421

Grossprofit 117802 105919 115033 186745

Operating profit loss 5786 14647 2985 35859

Net
earnings loss 2424 15830 1439 31270

Netearnings loss attnbutableto Blyth Inc 2435 15562 970 31791

Basic

Net earnings loss per common shareW 0.27 74 0.11 3.58

Diluted

Net earnings loss per common share

Netsales

0.27

April 30

201545

1.74 0.11 3.57

2011 Quarter Ended

In thousands except per
share data

July31 October31 January31

180636 215472 303275

Oroesprofit 115201 100044 110693 173692

Operating profit 7063 4135 5740 29670

Net earnings 4102 696 2122 17869 23

Net
earnings

attributable to Blyth Inc 4507 741 2580 17728

Basic

Nd earnissgs pr common share 051 0.09 0.3 2.14

Diluted

Net
earnings per ccsrnmon share 0.51 0.09 0.31 13

The sian ofpee sham amoaots the qaorsen does eat necessarily eqoal that seposni for the year couse the csmpasassess ore made indepandeally

qoarser fiscal 2s Is Not Loss ieclades goodwill asd other tosaogshle asses smpmcmees charge of$ Is millioe

52Feash qamter fiscal 201 Net Eaeniegs ccl odes asses smpairmnsls
of $3 milhoa

repmseesmg the impat smeas of assets associated with Boca Java disposisiae ef $1

mdhen Referto Nose 22 thewrjse dowe of ae Aacssse Rose Secorisyof$l milline Referse Nose and lease tesmioaooa cost of $00 mdhoo Retar so Note

Note 22 Subsequent Events

On February 11 2011 the Company assigned all the assets and liabilities of the Boca Java

business through court approved assignment for the benefit of its creditors The proceeds from

the sale of the assets will be used to discharge the claims of the creditors In January 2011 the

Company assessed the recoverability of these assets and recorded $1.1 million impairment

charge This charge was primarily to write down its fixed assets inventories on hand and other

assets net of any expected recoveries and was recorded to Cost of goods sold of $0.4 million and

Administrative expenses of $0.7 million in Consolidated Statement of Eamings Loss within the

Catalog and Internet Segment in Fiscal 2011

On April 2011 the Company entered into definitive agreement to sell substantially all of the

net assets of its seasonal home decor and home fragrance business Midwest-CBK within the

Wholesale segment for approximately $35 million which before transaction related costs is

approximately equal to its net book value upon closing The Company expects to receive cash

proceeds of approximately $23 million and one year promissory note secured by fixed assets

included with the transaction of approximately $12 million The sale is contingent upon the buyer

obtaining financing and is expected to close before the end of May 2011 The agreement provides

for the payment of termination fee if the buyer does not complete the transaction In fiscal 2011

total net sales for Midwest-CBK were $105 million

These transactions will be presented as discontinued operations in the first quarter of fiscal 2012
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Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial

Disclosure

None

Item 9A Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We conducted an evaluation under the supervision and with the participation of management

including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer of the effectiveness of the

design and operation of our disclosure controls and procedures as such term is defined in Rules

13a15e and 15d15e under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the

Exchange Act as of January 31 2011 Based on that evaluation the Chief Executive Officer

and Chief Financial Officer concluded that the Companys disclosure controls and procedures

were effective as of January 31 2011

Managements Assessment of Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemal control over

financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a15O and 15d15f under the Exchange Act Our

intemal control system over financial reporting is designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for

extemal purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles Because of

inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect

misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to

the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that the degree

of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

Management has assessed the effectiveness of our intemal control over financial reporting as of

January 31 2011 In making this assessment management used the criteria established in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the

Treadway Commission COSO The objective of this assessment is to determine whether our

internal control over financial reporting was effective as of January 31 2011 Based on our

assessment utilizing the criteria issued by COSO management has concluded that our internal

control over financial reporting was effective as of January 31 2011

Our independent registered public accounting firm has issued an attestation report on our intemal

control over financial reporting The report appears herein below

Changes in Intemal Control Over Financial Reporting

There have been no changes in our internal control over financial reporting identified in

connection with the evaluation required by paragraph of Exchange Act Rules 3a- 15 or 5d-

15 that occurred during the fourth quarter of fiscai 2011 that have materially affected or are

reasonably likely to materialiry affect our intQrnal control over financial reporting
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of Blyth Inc

We have audited Blyth Inc and Subsidiaries the Company internal control over financial

reporting as of January 31 2011 based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated

Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

the COSO criteria The Companys management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal

control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Managements Assessment of

Internal Control over Financial Reporting Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the

Companys internal control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to

obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was

maintained in all material
respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal

control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and

evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk

and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances We
believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable

assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial

statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that

pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the

transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that

transactions are recorded as necessary to pennit preparation of financial statements in accordance

with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and expenditures of the company
are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of

unauthorized acquisition use or disposition of the companys assets that could have material

effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or

detect misstatements Also projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are

subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions or that

the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion the Company maintained in all material respects effective internal control over

financial reporting as of January 31 2011 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting

Oversight Board United States the consolidated balance sheet of the Company as of January 31

2011 and the relaled consolidated statements of earnings loss stockholders equity and cash

flows for the year then ended and our report dated April 2011 expressed an unqualified opinion

thereon

/s/ Ernst Young LLP

Stamford Connecticut

April 2011
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Item 9B Other Information

On April 2011 the Company entered into definitive agreement to sell substantially all of the

net assets of its seasonal home decor and home fragrance business Midwest CBK within the

Wholesale segment for approximately $35 million which before transaction related costs is

approximately equal to its net book value upon closing The Company expects to receive cash

proceeds of approximately $23 million and one year promissory note secured by fixed assets

included with the transaction of approximately $12 million The sale is contingent upon the buyer

obtaining financing and is expected to close before the end of May 2011 The agreement provides

for the payment of termination fee if the buyer does not complete the transaction In fiscal 2011

total net sales for Midwest- CBK were $105.1 million
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PART III

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement for our annual

meeting of stockholders scheduled to be held on June 2011 the Proxy Statement under the

captions Nominees for Election as Directors Executive Officers Section 16a Beneficial

Ownership Reporting Compliance Code of Conduct and Board of Director and Committee

Meetings and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 11 Executive Compensation

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement under the

captions Executive Compensation Information Employment Contracts and Severance

Arrangements Compensation Committee Report and Compensation Committee Interlocks

and Insider Participation and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 12 Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related

Stockholder Matters

The information required by this Item is set forth in Item above and will also be forth in

our Proxy Statement under the caption Security Ownership of Management and Certain

Beneficial Owners and is incorporated herein by reference

Item 13 Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director

Independence

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement under the

captions Director Independence and Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and is

incorporated
herein by reference

Item 14 Principal Accounting Fees and Services

The information required by this Item will be set forth in our Proxy Statement under the

caption Independent Auditor Fees and is incorporated herein by reference
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Schedules

a1 Financial Statements

The following consolidated financial statements are contained on the indicated pages of this

report

Page No

Reports of Independent Registered Public Accounting

Firm 43

Statements

Consolidated Balance Sheets 45

Consolidated Statements of Earnings Loss 46

Consolidated Statements of Stockholders Equity 47

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows 48

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 49

a2 Financial Statement Schedules

The following financial statement schedule is contained on the indicated page of this report

Paae No

Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-2

All other schedules are omitted because they are inapplicable or the requested information is

shown in the consolidated financial statements or related notes

a3 Exhibits

Exhibit No Description of Exhibit

2.1 Membership Interest Purchase Agreement dated as of August 2008 among

Blyth Inc Blyth VSH Acquisition Corporation ViSalus Holdings LLC and the

members of ViSalus Holdings LLC incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.1 to

the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K flied on August 2008

22 Asset Purchase Agreement between MVP Group International Inc Midwest

CBK Inc and the other parties thereto dated as of April 2011

3.1 Amended and Restated certificate of Incorporation incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 3.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 10 2010

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to the

Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed June 10 2010

4.1a Form of Indenture dated as of May 20 1999 between the Registrant and First
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Union National Bank as Trustee incorporated by reference to the Registrants

Registration Statement on Form S-3 Reg No 333-7772 filed on May 1999

4.1b Form of Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of October 23 2003 between

the Registrant and Wachovia Bank National Association Trustee incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on October 22 2003

10.1 Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22 1993 between Carol Point

Builders IGeneraI Partnership and PartyLite Gifts Inc incorporated by

reference to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 5-1 No 33-

77458

10.1a First Amendment dated August 21 1995 between ERI-CP Inc. Delaware

corporation as successor to Carol Point Builders General Partnership and

PartyLite Gifts Inc to Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22 1993

between Carol Point Builders General Partnership and PartyLite Gifts Inc

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4a to the Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 1996

10.1b Second Amendment dated August 2000 between Carol Point LLC
Massachusetts limited liability company as successor landlord to ERI-CP Inc
and PartyLite Gifts Inc to Standard Form Industrial Lease dated April 22

1993 between Carol Point Builders General Partnership and PartyLite Gifts

Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4a to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 1996 incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 10.3b to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K

for the fiscal year ended January 31 2002

10.1c Third Amendment dated February 28 2001 between Carol Point LLC
Massachusetts limited liability company as successor landlord to ERI-CP Inc

and PartyLite Worldwide Inc as tenant pursuant to Assignment and

Assumption Agreement dated January 31 2001 between PartyLite Gifts Inc

assignor and PartyLite Worldwide Ijic assignee to Standard Form Industi iai

Lease dated April 22 1993 between Carol Point Builders General Partnership

and PartyLite Gifts Inc incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4a to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31

1996 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3c to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 2002

10.2 Lease Agreement dated June 25 1997 between Carol Stream Development

Company as landlord PartyLite Gifts Inc as tenant and the Registrant as

guarantor incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 to the Registrants Annual

Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 1998

10.2a First Amendment to Lease dated February 2001 between MP 437 Tower CS
Inc by RREEF Management Company as landlord as successor to Carol

Stream Development Company and PartyLite Worldwide Inc as tenant

pursuant to Assignment and Assumption Agreement dated January 31 2001
between PartyLite Gifts Inc assignor and PartyLite Worldwide Inc assignee

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4a to the Registrants Annual Report

on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 2002
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10.3 Form of Indemnity Agreement between the Registrant and each of its directors

incorporated by reference to the Registrants Registration Statement on Form 5-

No 33-77458

10.4 Blyth Industries Inc Non-Qualified Deferred Compensation Plan incorporated

by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as

filed on December 21 1999

10.5 Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as of December 11 2008

by and between the Registrant and Robert Goergen incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed on

December 12 2008

10.6 Registration Rights Agreement dated as of August 2000 by and between the

Registrant and Robert Goergen incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 to

the Registrants Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended

October 31 2000

0.6a Amendment No dated as of March 12 2004 to the Registration Rights

Agreement dated as of August 2000 by and between the Registrant and Robert

Goergen incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7a to the Registrants

Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31 2004

10.7 Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-K filed April 17 2000

10.7a Amendment No ito the Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option

Plan of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9a to the

Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended January 31

2004

10.8 Form of Non-transferable Incentive Stock Option Agreement under the

Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant

incorporated by reference to Exhibit to the Registrants Quirteriy Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31 1996

10.9 Form of Non-transferable Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under the

Amended and Restated 1994 Employee Stock Option Plan of the Registrant

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 to the Registrants Quarterly Report on

Form 10-Q for the fiscal quarter ended July 31 1996

10.10 Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non-Employee Directors of

the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 to the Registrants

Current Report on Form -K filed April 19 2002

10.10a Amendment No ito the Amended and Restated 1994 Stock Option Plan for

Non-Employee Directors of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.12a to the Registrants Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal year

ended January 31 2004

10.11 Form of Stock Option Agreement under the 1994 Stock Option Plan for Non

Employee Directors of the kegistrant incorporated by reference to the
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Registrants Registration Statement on Form 5-1 No 33-77458

10.12 Amended and Restated 2003 Omnibus Incentive Plan incorporated by reference

to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form filed June

2008

10.13 Amendment No to Amended and Restated Employment Agreement dated as

of December 10 2009 by and between the Registrant and Robert Goergen

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on

Form 8-Kas filed on December 10 2009

10.14 Blyth Inc Retention and Severance Agreement dated December 17 2010 by and

between Blyth Inc and Robert Barghaus incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17

2010

10.15 Blyth Inc Retention and Severance Agreement dated December 17 2010 by and

between Blyth Inc and Arme Butler incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17 2010

10.16 Blyth Inc Retention and Severance Agreement dated December 17 2010 by and

between Blyth Inc and Robert Ii Goergen Jr incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.3 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed December 17

2010

16.1 Letter Regarding Change in Certifying Accountant incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 16.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K as filed on May 14

2009

21.1
List of Subsidiaries

23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Finn

23.2 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

1.1 Section 302 Certification of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

3L2 Section 302 Certification of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

32.1 Certification of Chairmanand Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 906

of the Sarbanes-Oxey Ad of 2002

32.2 Certification of Vice President and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section

906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002

Filed herewith

Management contract or compensatory plan required to be filed by Item 5a3 of this report
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934

the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto

duly authorized

BLYTH INC

By Is Robert Goergen

Name Robert Goergen

Title Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Date April 2011
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Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has been signed

below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

Signature Title

Is Robert Goergen Chairman and Chief Executive Officer April 2011

Robert Goergen Director Principal Executive Officer

Is Robert Barghaus Vice President and Chief Financial Officer April 2011

Principal Financial and Accounting

Robert Barghaus Officer

Is Anne Busguet Director April 2011

Anne Busquet

Is Pamela Goergen Director April 2011

Pamela Goergen

Is Neal Goldman Director April 2011

Neal Goldman

Is Carol Hochman Director April 2011

Carol Hochman

Is Wilma Jordan Director April 2011

Wilma Jordan

Is James McTaggart Director April 2011

James McTaggart

Is Howard Rose Director April 2011

Howard Rose
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SCHEDULE II- VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the years ended January 31 20092010 and 2011

In thousands

Balance at Charged to Balance at

Description Beginning Costs and End of

of Period Expenses Deductions Period

2009

Allowance for doubtful accounts 2006 5648 4216 3438

Income tax valuation allowance 17493 7467 3427 21533

2010

Allowance for doubtful accounts 3438 3534 4729 2243

Incometaxvaluationallowance 21533 1165 1662 21036

2011

Allowance for doubtful accounts 2243 302 1201 1344

Income tax valuation allowance 21036 5709 63 26682

S-2


